Public Document Pack

[ el | CITY OF
4o Lincoln
\\ |/  COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Committee Rooms 1 and 2,
Wednesday, 19 April 2023 5.30 pm City Hall, Beaumont Fee,
Lincoln, LN1 1DD

Membership: Councillors Naomi Tweddle (Chair), Bob Bushell (Vice-Chair),
Debbie Armiger, Biff Bean, Chris Burke, Liz Bushell,
Gary Hewson, Rebecca Longbottom, Bill Mara, Mark Storer and
Edmund Strengiel

Substitute members: Councillors Neil Murray and Joshua Wells

Officers attending: Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron Manning, Becky
Scott and Dave Walker

The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda.
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant
information.

Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved,
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as
part of the process.

Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the
table at the relevant time.

AGENDA
SECTION A Page(s)
1. Confirmation of Minutes - 22 March 2023 5-14
2. Update Sheet To Be

Tabled
3. Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,
when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and
nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest
(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.



Applications for Development
(@) Corner Of Sincil Street & Waterside South, Lincoln 15-70

(b) Adjacent To Post Office, Parklands Food Store, Boultham Park 71 -92
Road, Lincoln

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No 174 93 - 116



THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED)

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Advertisement Applications are:

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

The application files contain the following documents:

the application forms;

plans of the proposed development;

site plans;

certificate relating to ownership of the site;

consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies;
letters and documents from interested parties;

memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council.

@~ooo0oTw

2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the
particular application or in the Planning Application specified above.

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan — Adopted April 2017

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln.

APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.)

Application No.: Additional Background Papers


https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006)

Criteria:

e Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of
information.

e Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc.

e Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason
of economic or environmental impact.

e Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in
the area of a site.

e Significant proposals outside the urban area.
e Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development.

e Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control.

¢ Development which could create significant hazards or pollution.

So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears
essential.

A proforma is available for all Members. This will need to be completed to request a site visit
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site
visit. It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration
of a planning application at Committee. It should also be used to request further or additional
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.



[tem No. 1

Planning Committee 22 March 2023

Present: Councillor Naomi Tweddle (in the Chair),

Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor
Sue Burke, Councillor Liz Bushell, Councillor

Gary Hewson, Councillor Rebecca Longbottom,
Councillor Bill Mara, Councillor Mark Storer, Councillor
Edmund Strengiel and Councillor Emily Wood

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Debbie Armiger and Councillor Chris Burke

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

Confirmation of Minutes - 25 January 2023

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2023 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a true record.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were received.

Member Statements

In the interest of transparency the following Members requested it be noted that
they recognised persons present in the public gallery at tonight's meeting in
relation to the application for development Agenda Item No 4(a) 18A-20 High
Street, Lincoln, however, not in a personal capacity:

Councillor Bean
Councillor Hewson
Councillor Longbottom
Councillor S Burke

Update Sheet

An update sheet was circulated at the meeting in relation to planning applications
to be considered this evening, which included additional information for Members
attention received after the original agenda documents had been published.
RESOLVED that the update sheet be received by Planning Committee.

Work to Trees in City Council Ownership

Dave Walker, Arboricultural Officer:

a. advised Planning Committee of the reasons for proposed works to trees in
the City Council's ownership and sought consent to progress the works
identified, as detailed at Appendix A of his report

b. highlighted that the list did not represent all the work undertaken to Council
trees, it represented all the instances where a tree was either identified for
removal, or where a tree enjoyed some element of protection under
planning legislation, and thus formal consent was required

c. explained that ward counciII%rs had been notified of the proposed works.



69.
70.

RESOLVED that the tree works set out in the schedules appended to the report
be approved.

Applications for Development
18A - 20 High Street, Lincoln

The Planning Team Leader:

a. described the location of the site on the west side and corner of the High
Street, and Henley Street, occupied by a three storey building fronting
High Street, previously a restaurant at ground floor with associated
residential accommodation above with garages to the rear accessed from
Henley Street also included

b. explained that a site visit was conducted by members of Planning
Committee and planning officers earlier this afternoon to help offer
familiarity to the location of the proposed development

c. described the Golden Eagle Public House to the north of the application
site attached to the building at first/second floor with an arch at ground
floor, which led into its car park to the rear with a grassed outdoor seating
area/garden located beyond to the west

d. referred to terraced properties sited to the west on the north and south
side of Henley Street

e. advised that the site was situated within the St Catherine's Conservation
Area No 4

f. reported that planning permission was sought for the erection of a
commercial unit at ground floor with 10 residential apartments above and
to the rear; the building fronting High Street would be extended upwards
by raising the existing eaves and ridge height to provide accommodation
within the roof space and a three storey extension would be added to the
rear of the existing building to provide further residential accommodation

g. confirmed that pre-application discussions had taken place with the
architect and further discussions had continued throughout the application
process, resulting in revisions having been submitted to address officer
concerns regarding the scale of the building on High Street; improvements
had also been made to the fenestration proportions and design and
treatment of the extension on Henley Street

h. reported that the application was brought to Planning Committee given the
number of objections received

a) provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy

Policy LP13: Accessibility and Transport

Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk

Policy LP25: The Historic Environment

Policy LP27: Main6 Town Centre Uses - Frontages and



Advertisements

e Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character

e Policy LP33: Lincoln's City Centre Primary Shopping Area and
Central Mixed Use Area

e Policy LP35: Lincoln's Regeneration and Opportunity Areas

¢ National Planning Policy Framework

b) advised Planning Committee of the main issues to be considered as part
of the application to assess the proposal with regards to:

e Principle and Policy Background

e Impact of the Proposed Development on the Character and
Appearance of the Conservation Area and Visual Amenity

¢ Impact on Residential Amenity and Impact on Adjacent Premises

e Highways and Drainage

e Contamination

c) outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

d) referred to the Update sheet which included further representations
received in respect of the proposed planning development and the
following additional proposed officer conditions subject to planning
permission being granted:

e Further details shall be submitted including sections of the proposed
shop front.

e The shopfront shall be implemented before the occupation of the
first apartment.

e Corridor windows in the north elevation to be obscure glazed.

e) concluded that:

e The development would relate well to the site and surroundings,
particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing and design.

e The proposals would bring a vacant site back into use and would
ensure the character and appearance of the Conservation Area was
preserved.

e Technical matters relating to noise, contamination and drainage
were to the satisfaction of the relevant consultees and could be
dealt with as necessary by condition.

e The proposals would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of CLLP Policies and the NPPF.

Christopher Tyers, local resident, addressed Planning Committee in objection to
the proposed development, covering the following main concerns:

e He represented members of the public in attendance this evening in the
public gallery.

e He was the current landlord and business owner of the Golden Eagle
Public House.

e This was a community pub which also supported the local music
community, holding open mic nights, free live music events, parties and
large gathering events without a single noise complaint to date.

7



The business had survived by changing the way it operated to include
such live music events.

It also embraced the local football team in the City and everyone was
made welcome from the community, including match days.

Should the proposed development go ahead, it posed major concerns.

The design of the development would cause entrapment of sound/an echo
effect from the premises being unavoidable, resulting in noise complaints
being received and major restrictions placed on the business which would
result ultimately in closure.

The pub premises benefitted from double glazing, however, in the summer
months when the windows were opened local residents may be able to
hear the noise.

The single entrance to the pub was located directly opposite the proposed
development which was also key to ventilation in the bar area.

The Golden Eagle Public House was an historical asset listed as No 1 on
Lincolns building and structures of local importance, and also situated in
Conservation Area 4 - St Catherine’s.

The report was misleading as the current development site premises were
indeed still operating as a Cantonese and takeaway restaurant.

The proposed development would reduce natural light to the premises and
also to external area

There were issues with loss of light/ privacy to his daughter’'s bedroom.
There were issues of overbearing/structural issues resulting from the
proposed development’s building height.

Proposed buildings to the rear were not in character with the street
scene/local area.

There were issues with lack of off street parking/traffic concerns.

Richard Havenhand addressed Planning Committee on behalf of the applicant in
favour of the proposed development, covering the following main points:

He had been asked to speak on behalf of the owner of the restaurant who
had owned the property since the 1980’s.

Due to the high running costs of the business, the owner wished to
relocate to smaller premises in the City.

The redevelopment proposals for this site would improve the surrounding
area.

The bottom floor of the development would be mainly residential and retail
use.

Many changes had been made to the design of the proposals to reflect
feedback from officers and throughout the public consultation process.
Most of the windows would be obscure glazed to address any issues of
overlook.

The owner in no way wished to restrict the enjoyment of musical
entertainment at the pub.

The owner had always enjoyed good relationships with the local
community and he hoped this would continue.

The Committee discussed the content of the report in further detail.

The following concerns were raised by members:

There were concerns as to how the new building would impact on the
existing public house and beer garden.
8



¢ A noise assessment report would need to be submitted.

e The aim here was to improve the existing building to enable it to be sold.

e The height of the building had been reduced but its ridge was still higher
than that of the existing building.

e The garages to the rear of the development would be replaced by a flat top
building.

e The building was high and ugly.

e The height at the top of the chimneys seemed to be out of character being
so large.

e Noise was a natural part of a pub holding music events.

e The noise impact on the new residents of the development should also be
taken into account.

e The Highways Authority did not take into account the pressures of parking
due to the availability of public transport in the area, however, in the real
world it would cause additional problems.

e The design of the proposed development was not in keeping with the
remainder of the street or the Conservation Area.

e The security of properties/installation of window locks was important.

e Having 3 storeys would maximise profit when the premises were sold.

e The impact of the height of the offshoot on Henley Street at 3 storeys
would have a significant impact on the public house

e Issues of overbearing/over development/height of building.

e The public house should be protected as a community asset.

e There would be an adverse impact from the development on the character
of the Conservation Area.

e The proposed development would have an adverse impact on adjacent
properties.

The following comments were received from members in support of the proposed
planning application

e Members would not wish for the public house to lose trade, however, the
remit of Planning Committee was to look at what was before us this
evening, and there was always an aspiration for additional residential
accommodation above the shops in the City.

e New residents would know they were moving into accommodation
adjacent to a public house.

e There was a desperate need for additional housing in the City. We were a
member of the Central Lincolnshire Planning Authority, with a remit to build
an additional 37,000 houses across West Lindsey, North Kesteven and
City of Lincoln Council in a 25 year period. Our part of the housing project
covered only a small area.

e There were 1,040 people on the Council house waiting list.

e Sound proofing measures could be put in place to limit any noise impact
and overlooking to the side windows with the use of obscure glass.

e The new build would represent a visual improvement to the existing
garages to the rear.

e Parking was already an existing problem on the adjacent High Street.

e The new shop front should be installed on site before the residential
properties were occupied.

e There was a need for additional housing in the City. This development
would provide ten units of accommodation.

e The appearance of the development had been carefully designed and
would offer improvement to g1e area .



Unattractive garage fronts would be replaced.

Materials used would be carefully conditioned.

Windows would be replaced and remodelled.

It was pleasing to see that the original occupation of the ground floor for

retail use had been retained.

e There were no objections from the Highways Authority.

e This was a dense residential area. This development was unlikely to
generate additional complaints more than from any other people moving
into the area.

e The height of the building was not inappropriate.

e The original scheme had been modified to take into account resident and

officer concerns.

The following questions were raised by Members:

e Would there be any parking at the rear side of the development?

e Could further clarification be given as to the distance from the windows of
the existing to the new development.

e Was the actual location of the bin storage suitable for use by the
commercial property?

e Would external cycle storage be provided as there would be insufficient
storage space within the flats?

e Did the size of the upper two flats meet planning regulations?

e The gardens on Henley Street were already in existence, had there been
any noise complaints from local residents or the public house?

The Planning Team Leader offered the following points of clarification to
members:

e He was not aware of any noise complaints from existing residents or the
public house itself.

e In terms of noise mitigation, the City Council’s Pollution Officer had
assessed the proposal and suggested that a noise impact assessment be
submitted prior to commencement of the development to ensure that the
proposed development incorporated mitigation measures to reduce noise
impacts, such as acoustically enhanced glazing and ventilation.

e The security of the properties was the responsibility of its owners.

e The rear yard of the proposed scheme included amenity space and
provision of bin storage and cycle storage facilities.

e Space standards were a material planning consideration. The new flats
should be a minimum of 37 square metres. The top one was 36 square
metres and the other upper flat was 34 metres square, slightly below
planning guidance. However, the ‘set back’ of the upper floor had been
increased, reducing the size of the upper two flats slightly to offer
architectural benefit to the building.

e A condition would be imposed on grant of planning permission requiring
implementation of the shopfront prior to the first floor accommodation
being occupied.

e The distance between the windows of the first floor flat to the existing
development were a distance of 10 metres and 12 metres respectively.

¢ No parking was provided on site and officers did not consider it could be
successfully designed into the scheme. There was however sustainable
access via walking, cycling and public transport.

e Your Planning Officers andOConservation Officers had discussed and
1



71.

made amendments to the plans for the scheme to improve the character of
the Conservation Area. Officers were satisfied that the style of architecture
whilst contemporary, was sympathetic to the Conservation Area.

It was moved, seconded, and voted upon that planning permission be granted.

The motion fell.

RESOLVED that planning permission be refused.

Members having voted against grant of planning permission discussed reasons
for refusal.

It was moved, seconded, voted upon and:

RESOLVED that planning permission be refused due to the following reasons:

Impact on Conservation Area due to the design of Henley Street.
Space standards were below planning guidance provided.

Lack of parking.

Impact on residential amenity of adjacent properties.

54 Sibthorp Street, Lincoln

The Assistant Director of Planning:

a.

advised that the application proposed the erection of a single storey rear
extension and installation of 2 conservation rooflights on the front elevation
to the application property at 54 Sibthorp Street, Lincoln, a two storey mid
terrace dwelling

reported that the property had the benefit of a Certificate of Lawful use for
its use as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) for up to 6 occupants
(C4); the use of the property would remain as a HMO.

highlighted that the application had been subject to extensive negotiations
with the agent securing revisions to the proposal to overcome some of the
concerns raised by officers, neighbours, and the Conservation Officer,
following which revised plans had been submitted and a re-consultation
exercise conducted.

advised that the site was situated within the City of Lincoln Sibthorp No.7
Conservation Area

described the site history to the application site as detailed within the
officer’s report

reported that the application was brought before Planning Committee due
to the number of objections received

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP25: The Historic Environment
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity
e National Planning Polic]?/ Framework



g. advised Planning Committee of the main issues to be considered as part

of the application to assess the proposal with regards to:

e Planning Policy

e Effect on Visual Amenity and the Character and Appearance of the
Conservation Area

e Effect on Residential Amenity

e Effect on Highway Safety

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

concluded that the proposed development was of an appropriate design
that would not materially harm the character and appearance of the
building or conservation area, in accordance with the duty contained within
Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act
1990, policies LP25 'The Historic Environment' and LP26 'Design and
Amenity' of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and guidance within the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail.

Members commented as follows:

Would the historical issues of drainage at the site impact upon the
proposed extension.

What was the definition of conservation roof lights.

A wall of all white UPVC windows in the streetscene distracted from the
Conservation Area.

We tended to under value some views in urban landscapes to the back
and side of developments.

The rear of the properties in the street scene held a distinct landscape of
outbuildings with gaps where outside toilets used to be situated. Would the
break in the link to the outbuildings as a result of the proposed extension
destroy the relationship with this very British tradition?

Were the rooms sufficient in size?

The Assistant Director of Planning offered the following points of clarification:

Drainage issues were historic in the site area as identified by neighbours.
This problem would be addressed through the building control consent
process.

Conservation roof lights were designed for use in Conservation Areas as
they were slightly smaller in size.

Planning officers shared the members concerns regarding protection of
urban landscapes, however, over decades installation of UPVC windows
had been carried out without consent, way before our time.

The gap in the outbuildings would be removed by the link of the extension.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

Time limit of the permission
Development in accordance with the approved plans

12



¢ No sleeping accommodation in rear extension
e Hours of construction

13



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 4a

Application Number: | 2022/0159/0UT

Site Address: Corner Of Sincil Street & Waterside South, Lincoln

Target Date: 27th May 2022

Agent Name: Lichfields

Applicant Name: Lincolnshire Co-operative Ltd

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a new hotel, together with

landscaping and associated works, including demolition of all
existing structures on the site and demolition of pedestrian
footbridge across Melville Street

Background - Site Location and Description

Application is for Outline planning permission for the erection of a hotel at the corner of
Waterside South and Melville Street. Approval is sought for the access, with all other
matters; appearance, landscaping, layout and scale, reserved. The proposed hotel is for
approx. 150 beds, with front of house and restaurant facilities provided at ground floor
level. As submitted the application was for a 7-storey structure.

The proposal was subject to pre application discussions and has also been negotiated
during the course of the application and revisions secured and revised plans received. The
main changes to the scheme comprise the removal of a storey, and the realignment of the
building to move the building line back from Melville Street.

Whilst all matters except access are reserved, given the location of the site within the
Cathedral and City Centre conservation area and the potential effect of the hotel on views
of the historic hillside and Cathedral, indicative details indicating the potential height, scale,
massing and design parameters of the building were required as part of the Outline
submission.

The revised proposal is for the erection of a hotel 6 storey's high, on a slightly amended
footprint and axis within the site than previously submitted. The revised proposal still aims
to provide approx. 120- 150 beds, with front of house, restaurant and hotel services to the
ground floor. The proposal will provide 6350m2 of gross new internal floorspace.

As the application is for Outline permission, the detailed design of the hotel has not been
finalised however a design code has been provided as part of the application, along with
an indication of height and massing. The final elevational treatment and materials pallet to
be agreed at the Reserved Matters stage.

Formerly the Coop City Square Shopping Centre and car park, the site is currently vacant.
All existing structures on the site will be demolished. The application also therefore
proposes the demolition of the existing footbridge which spans Melville Street and lands
within the NE corner of the application site. The proposed hotel site is 1911m2 in area and
is located immediately south of the River Witham.

The site is part of the wider Cornhill Quarter redevelopment scheme and close to the
recent developments of the new Central Car Park and the City Bus Station.

The site is located within the Cathedral and City Centre and Conservation Area No.1

The site lies within the Central Mixed Use Area.

15



An application for full planning permission has also been submitted on behalf of McCarthy
Stone for a scheme of apartments and associated parking and living facilities, with ground
floor retail, for the remainder of the City Square Shopping Centre site to the east of the
application site (2022/0128/FUL).

Site History

No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 71" February 2023.

Policies Referred to

Policy LP1 A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP17 Landscape, Townscape and Views

Policy LP26 Design and Amenity

Policy LP26 Design and Amenity

National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

Local and National Planning Policy

Demolition in the conservation area including existing buildings and footbridge.
Effect on established key views including the historic hillside and Cathedral
Effect on the character and appearance of the conservation area

Effect on Residential Amenity

Vitality and Viability of the City Centre

Highways

Flood Risk/ Drainage

Land Contamination

Air Quality

Fume Extraction

Trees and Landscaping

Ecology

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2023.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment
Historic England Comments Received
Environment Agency Comments Received

16




Lincs Bat Group

Comments Received

Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust

No Response Received

Environmental Health

Comments Received

Highways & Planning

Comments Received

Lincolnshire Police John

Comments Received

Councillor Chris Burke

No Response Received

Councillor Sue Burke

No Response Received

Councillor Helena Mair

No Response Received

Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments Received

Education Planning Manager,
Lincolnshire County Council

Comments Received

Anglian Water

Comments Received

Upper Witham, Witham First
District & Witham Third
District

Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name

Address

Mr Mark Wheater

Mr Mark Wheater

Mrs Annette Faulkner

65 London Road
Spalding
PE11 2TN

Mr Paul Scott

Thesiger Street
Lincoln
LN5 7UL

17




Consideration

Policy

LP1 is relevant. The Local Plan states that when considering development proposals the
local authority "will take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of
sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. The
districts will always work proactively with applicants to find solutions which mean that
proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that improves
the economic, social and environmental conditions in Central Lincolnshire. Planning
applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan will be approved without delay,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise."

Public Benefits of the Development

With regard to the planning balance, the proposal will result in a number of improvements
within both the immediate area of the application site and the wider city centre and city as
a whole. These include-

e supporting the City's status as a visitor destination and helping to meet an identified
need for additional visitor accommodation within the city centre;

e Townscape benefits - replacing a largely undeveloped site, gap site.

e Removing the unsightly pedestrian footbridge over Melville Street.

e Increasing activity to Waterside South and Melville Street and adding visual interest
to the local area,

e Improvements to the local public realm and function of this part of the Cornhill
Quarter;

e Economically providing a significant level of investment within the city with benefits
both during the construction phase and going forward with the hotel, thereby
helping to enhance the overall vitality and viability of the city centre.

LP25 of the CLLP is relevant and states that;

"Development proposals that affect the setting of a Listed Building will be supported where
they preserve or better reveal the significance of the Listed Building."”

With regard to Conservation Areas, LP25 states "Development within, affecting the setting
of, or affecting views into or out of, a Conservation Area

should preserve (and enhance or reinforce it, as appropriate) features that contribute
positively to the area's character, appearance and setting."

Policy LP26 Design and Amenity is also relevant stating "All development, including
extensions and alterations to existing buildings, must achieve high quality sustainable
design that contributes positively to local character, landscape and townscape, and
supports diversity, equality and access for all.”

The amenities which all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings

may reasonably expect to enjoy must not be unduly harmed by or as a result of
development

18



Removal of the Footbridge and Highway Implications

The application proposes the removal of the existing footbridge spanning across Melville
Street, required in order to facilitate the new hotel building. The removal of the footbridge
is also considered to be to the benefit of the townscape, in that the footbridge partially
obscures views of the historic hillside.

The Planning Statement indicates that the removal of the footbridge will be undertaken by
the applicant, without incurring any costs to the Council or Highway Authority.

A formal response from the Highway Authority on the as revised plans is yet to be
received, however an interim response on the as submitted plans raised no objections in
principle to the development subject to a number of conditions.

The removal of the footbridge is considered to be an improvement to this part of the city
centre in townscape terms. The Highway Authority has stated its support for the removal of
the footbridge, with necessary mitigation.

The Highway Authority has however stated that the loss of the footbridge will need to be
off set and has requested a Section 106 contribution of £500,000 as mitigation for the
removal of the footbridge, to provide improved walking and cycling infrastructure at this
location.

The Highway Authority states;

"The footbridge provides a necessary east - west connection across Broadgate and is in
regular use as a public highway. This connection is of strategic importance and is reflected
in the Lincoln Transport Strategy and the Lincoln Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure
Plan in relation to National Cycle Route 64. This connection is also essential for facilitating
future regeneration to deprived areas to the east of Broadgate.

The Lincoln Transport Strategy 2018 - 2036 lists Broadgate Public Realm and
Environmental Improvements as a primary infrastructure intervention. The opening of the
Lincoln Eastern Bypass has provided opportunity to enhance the area and stimulate
economic growth using interventions such as improved walking and cycling facilities and
measures to reduce vehicle speeds. The scheme is currently at an early design stage and
an essential element of the project will be to improve the east-west connection at Melville
Street/Waterside North/Waterside South junction.

Lincolnshire County Council support the removal of the footbridge with necessary
mitigation, to support this application and facilitate growth.

In consideration of the emerging Broadgate Corridor scheme, LCC and the applicant wish
to avoid the applicant delivering a project immediately which mitigates the removal of the
footbridge, but which may act as a constraint for the Broadgate Corridor scheme.

The applicant undertook a Pedestrian Environment Review System (PERS) audit on
Broadgate to support this application, which demonstrated that there was no short-term
adverse effect on public highway users if the footbridge were to be removed, given the
presence of the signalised pedestrian crossings at St Swithins Square and Newton Street
as alternate options.

19



We accept that in the short term, highway users have alternate options to cross Melville
Street that are comparable to the footbridge. However, the displacement of highway users
to the alternate crossings is a short-term solution as consideration must be given the
strategic need for improved walking and cycling facilities at this location.

We request a Section 106 contribution of £500,000 as mitigation for the removal of the
footbridge, to provide improved walking and cycling infrastructure at this location.

At this stage, timescales for delivery of the Broadgate Corridor scheme are unknown,
though this will be the preferred mechanism to deliver the required improvements which
mitigate the removal of the footbridge and achieve the strategic aims outlined in the
Lincoln Transport Strategy. If the Broadgate Corridor scheme is not delivered within a
suitable timeframe, the Highway Authority will be required to deliver a project to directly
mitigate the removal of the footbridge and provide the necessary east-west connection.
This will be through the delivery of a signalised pedestrian crossing.

The S106 contribution cost has been based on an uncertainty model for the delivery of a
signalised pedestrian crossing on Melville Street at the junction with Waterside South.
Preliminary studies undertaken by the applicant indicated that there were services within
the eastern footway which would require diversion at significant cost. This has been
accounted for in the uncertainty model which is why the expected scheme cost is higher
than would usually be expected.”

In response, the applicant through the Planning Statement has stated that they do not
consider that the requested contribution meets the tests within the NPPF (para. 57), which
states that planning obligations must be sought only where they meet all of the stated
tests.

a. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b. directly related to the development; and
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

The applicant justifies this response by indicating that with the removal of the footbridge,
highway users will still have alternate options to cross Melville Street that are comparable
to the footbridge. Therefore, the requested obligation cannot be said to be necessary in
order to make the development acceptable.

A Transport Statement has been submitted with the application.

The submitted TS concludes that there will be no highway issues associated with the
development.

As part of the Transport Assessment, the applicant also undertook a Pedestrian
Environment Review System (PERS) audit on Broadgate to support the application.

In its formal response the Highway Authority stated;

"The applicant undertook a Pedestrian Environment Review System (PERS) audit on
Broadgate to support this application, which demonstrated that there was no short-term
adverse effect on public highway users if the footbridge were to be removed, given the
presence of the signalised pedestrian crossings at St Swithins Square and Newton Street
as alternate options.

20



We accept that in the short term, highway users have alternate options to cross Melville
Street that are comparable to the footbridge. However, the displacement of highway users
to the alternate crossings is a short-term solution as consideration must be given the
strategic need for improved walking and cycling facilities at this location.”

The Planning Statement also concludes that;

"The removal of the footbridge is supported by the County Council, and will be a significant
improvement to this part of the city centre in townscape terms, that will be undertaken by
the applicant, without incurring any costs to the Council.”

A view therefore has to be taken as to whether or not the request meets the tests of para
57 of the NPPF. On balance, Officers have concluded that the request does not meet the
tests in that the applicants study indicates that there are alternative arrangements in place
within the area which will accommodate the loss of the footbridge. It would also be
reasonable to anticipate that expected trip generation from the proposed hotel
development would be to and from the nearby transport interchange to the south, being
from the Railway Station, Bus Station and Car Park, and then west into the City Centre,
and not increasing trip generations East across Melville Street.

Site Context and Analysis

On site it is clear that the current arrangement of buildings for the former City Square
Shopping Centre and the adjacent car park, was that the relationship of the existing built
form to both Sincil Street and Melville Street is poor and can be improved both visually and
in term of forming a sense of enclosure.

The submitted Landscape Proposals document undertaken by Re-form summarises the
existing built form:

"The current plot contributes little to the surrounding footpath and street network turning its
back on all surrounding routes. Tall brick walls up to 2m in height prevent views and
restrict permeability through the site. Surfacing and materiality is of low quality and largely
poorly maintained."

The Design and Access Statement identifies the opportunities the redevelopment of the
site could attain including:

¢ forming consistent frontages along Melville Street,

e increase activity and interest along adjacent streets through active frontages
including animating the riverside,

e create new views of the Cathedral,

e creating a gateway building into the city centre,

Effect on Visual Amenity

As originally submitted, the scheme was a part 6, part 7 storey building located at the back
edge of the pavement and resulted in the removal of established street trees. Concerns
were raised regarding the impact of the new hotel on established views of the historic
hillside and in particular encroaching and partially obscuring views of the Cathedral.

21



The scheme has now been revised to lower the building by one storey to form a part 5,
part 6 storey building, set back the building further from the back edge of the pavement to
Melville Street and rotating the building slightly on its axis and replacing the existing street
trees within the site application boundary fronting Melville Street with a row of new trees,
including four London Plane trees. Previously the row of street trees was to be removed
with no replacement trees proposed along Melville Street.

The Design and Access statement concludes that the revised development will "Enhance
the character of the surroundings, reflecting both historic form and materials in a
contemporary manner, establishing a gateway and destination on a currently
underdeveloped site."

Waterside South suffers from a lack of enclosure to the site edge. It is clear on site that the
area around and including the application site is poor in terms of urban form, street level
activity, local distinctiveness and good architectural design. It is considered that the
development provides an opportunity to re-establish historic urban grain and increase
density within the area, providing an active frontage to both Riverside South and Melville
Street and re -enforcing enclosure to the riverside.

The Planning Statement identifies that "the indicative design of the proposed hotel has
been carefully considered to ensure the nature, massing and scale of development is
compatible with neighbouring development.

Compared to the current site, the proposed scheme introduces beneficial changes in terms
of enclosure, design and materials (controlled by Design Code), activity and building
alignment.”

Although all matters are to be reserved with the exception of access, a range of indicative
plans and a design code have been submitted as part of the Outline application, to explore
the potential parameters for a 150 bed hotel building on the site. As the scheme
progresses further, detailed architectural and interior design will be developed and
illustrated for a future reserved matters application.

The proposed revised hotel scheme (reduced in height and rotated) is considered to be an
acceptable new addition within the conservation area. The scheme would be an
enhancement to the street scene by developing this gap site whilst retaining the trees and
removing the pedestrian footbridge over Melville Street. By replacing a largely
undeveloped site and the poor-quality pedestrian footbridge over Melville Street, the
submitted Design and Access Statement indicates that the proposed development
introduces either neutral or beneficial effects to views.

In relation to townscape and visual amenity, the proposal is considered to be a positive
replacement of the vacant car park, while the revised plans maintain the long views of the
Cathedral from the South of the city.

The new hotel is positioned at the back of the pavement along Melville Street creating a
strong frontage to the street edge. Ground floor uses proposed along Melville Street and
Waterside South include communal areas such as the lobby, bar and restaurant offering
activity and passive surveillance to the surrounding streetscape, a significant improvement
on the current arrangement.

The proposed indicative design has been revised during both pre application and during

22



the course of the application, further to concerns regarding the proposed height and
location of the building and the effect on the historic hillside and Cathedral.

The Design and Access Statement includes the design rationale for the development. The
layout of the design is strongly north- south in orientation. It refers to the historic grain of
the area and its medieval burgage plot layout.

The building form is a simple linear element reinforcing the highway edge typical of the
local urban block form. The overall massing is simple in form which the D&A Statement
states reflects the Victorian industrial mills in the area.

The importance of a building 'cap’ is explored in the D&A Statement. A distinctive top to
the proposed development is desired. This will break down the scale and uniformity of the
mass, whilst providing visual interest from long distance views, and a more refined
architectural response to the immediate context."

Design Code

An outline design code submitted with the application explores the details that inform the
design, with respect to building form, massing, and the approach to external appearance.
The Design Code highlights considerations that are commonly applied to hotel building
types and capture fundamental design principles. The Design Code helps identify
principles of design.

Principles identified by the Design Code-

Key Views and Effect on Heritage Assets.

Concerns were raised by both Officers and Historic England to the plans as submitted, in
relation to the effect on heritage assets in the area and in particular the effect on the
Cathedral by partially obscuring views of this grade | listed building from established
viewpoints from the south. In particular from Pelham Bridge and Melville Street, where
currently views of the Cathedral are framed by existing built form on both the east and
west sides of Melville Street.

Policies LP25 and LP17 are relevant. The proposal for a hotel at this site needs to
demonstrate that it will not be harmful to and from key views within the city.

LP17 states that;

All development proposals should take account of views in to, out of and within
development areas: schemes should be designed (through considerate development,
layout and design) to preserve or enhance key local views and vistas, and create new
public views where possible. Particular consideration should be given to views of
significant buildings and views within Central Lincolnshire | Local Plan - Adopted April
2017 A Quality Central Lincolnshire 5 49 landscapes which are more sensitive to change
due to their open, exposed nature and extensive intervisibility from various viewpoints.

The application is also required to assess the potential effects of the proposed
development on the setting and the significance of the heritage assets.

With regard to Heritage Assets, the key feature is the historic hillside and importantly the

23



grade | listed and Scheduled Lincoln Cathedral. There are also a number of other listed
buildings and schedule monuments in the vicinity of as part of the historic hillside including
the Lincoln Castle, St Michael on the Mount and the Bishops Palace, King Edward House,
22 and 24 Melville Street, and public houses the Witch and Wardrobe and the Green
Dragon.

A Heritage and Townscape Assessment has been undertaken including a consideration of
the impact of the development on established views or views from heritage assets within
the context of the site. The HTA concludes that there is either minor neutral, negligible
neutral or moderate neutral, on views from key sties as a result of the development.

The submitted HTA assess the impact of the hotel on each of these heritage assets and
concludes in each case, the setting of the listed buildings will be either enhanced or
preserved, and that in all cases, significance will be preserved.

The application submission has included a Design and Access Statement which provides
an analysis of the proposed hotel and the potential effect on the historic hillside and
Cathedral. A series of photomontages has been utilised to test the impact on townscape
from several viewpoints to show the proposed hotel in the context of the existing built form,
including a kinetic view sequence from Pelham Bridge and at points along Melville Street.

Concerning the revised proposals, the Planning Statement indicates that "In all cases,
significance will be preserved.”, in that all the assets identified will not be harmed by the
development.

Policy LP17 is therefore considered to be met, whereby the character of the townscape is
protected and enhanced with the proposals making a positive contribution to the character
of the area. Key local views are also unharmed with the revised proposals.

The HTA concludes that

"Overall, the proposed hotel (reduced in height and rotated) is considered to be an
acceptable new addition within the views. The scheme would be an enhancement to the
street scene by developing this gap site whilst replacing the trees and removing the
pedestrian footbridge over Melville Street."

It should be noted that there is some effect by the proposed hotel, even with the revised
proposals on the views of the Cathedral when viewed from this southern viewpoint. From
the drawings provided to show the indicative massing, scale and location, the hotel will
impinge on the silhouette of the Cathedral and in particular clipping the most westerly side
of the west tower to the Cathedral.

The application provides an assessment on the length of this particular view whereby
views of the cathedral maybe be partially obscured by the proposed development. As
originally proposed the length of view sequence interrupted was approx. 160m, the revised
proposal has reduced this to approx. 75m. On balance, with all the other benefits of the
scheme considered, the effect is not considered sufficiently harmful to warrant a refusal
with the Western tower of the Cathedral remaining largely revealed. The existing effect of
Thorngate House is also a material factor when assessing the impact of the new
development, with some views of the hillside/ Cathedral already being partially obscured
by this previous development which sits in between the application site and the Cathedral.

24



Historic England has been consulted on the revised proposals. A formal final response on
the revised plans has yet to be received.

Land Contamination

The proposal has been assessed by the City Councils Scientific Officer. Due to past uses
on the site and in the vicinity, there is the potential for contamination to be present and
therefore a preliminary risk assessment should be submitted either prior to determination
of this application or conditioned for considered at the RM stage.

Air Quality

Whilst not providing on site parking, it is anticipated that guests using the hotel will in part
arrive by car and use the adjacent Central Car park, therefore leading to an increased
demand for electric charging facilities. A section 106 contribution towards additional
charging facilities within the adjacent multi storey car park is therefore requested.

Fume Extraction

The proposal has been assessed by Environmental Health. It is assumed that the hotel will
be served by a commercial kitchen and extract system. A condition should therefore be
included on the outline permission for details of kitchen extraction including details of noise
and odour control.

Noise

EH state that the development is likely to be significantly affected by existing noise
sources such as the adjacent highway, MSCP and the numerous commercial and
industrial uses in the vicinity of the site. The new development is also identified as
introducing new noise sources into the area. Therefore, a noise assessment is requested
should permission be granted, required prior to the commencement of development on
site.

Given the potential for issues associated with noise, vibration and dust during the
demolition and redevelopment of the site a Construction Environmental Management Plan
is also requested by EH to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of the
development to be imposed by condition.

Lincolnshire Police has no objections to the proposal.

Flooding and Drainage

The Environment Agency has no comment to make on the application.

The application form states that the surface water drainage of the site will be via a
sustainable drainage solution. Details of the drainage are to be considered reserved
matters stage. The Highway Authority indicated on the initial response that the scheme
should incorporate a SUDs system through details to be submitted at the RM stage. The
preference for a sud's scheme was also indicated by AW.

Anglian Water has indicated assets owned by AW are in the area and that the site layout
should take this into account, or if not possible to accommodate, sewers will need to be

25



diverted at the developers cost. prior to the commencement of development. There is
capacity in the area for the foul drainage.

Lincolnshire County Council has no requests in relation to the development and education
provision or contributions.

A Preliminary Ecology Appraisal compiled by Inspired Ecology Ltd is submitted with the
application. An extended Phase 1 Habitat survey was completed on 20th August 2021
when an ecological walkover survey was undertaken, and a subsequent desktop study
undertaken in December 2021.

The nature of the site, being a building and large area of surface carparking, the site was
identified as having little potential for amphibians, reptiles and badgers. The trees adjacent
to the site provide opportunities for nesting birds. No signs of roosting by bats were found
on site. The on-site building was assessed as having low bat roost potential and the
ecology report advised will require a single nocturnal bat survey during the active bat
season, as it will be removed as a result of the proposals. This can be subject to a
condition.

Landscaping and Loss of Trees.

A Landscape Strategy Document has been submitted with the application undertake by
Reform.

The location of the hotel impacts upon a line of 6 existing established trees and would
necessitate their removal. The Landscape Strategy document states that a survey has
been undertaken by a qualified arboriculturist, while the City Councils Arboriculturist has
also considered the development proposals.

The trees are predominantly early mature to mature London Plane and 1 Lime. The
Strategy identifies that the trees all are prominent from busy publicly accessible areas and
as such they have high visual amenity value. The trees have occasional minor structural
defects yet generally are in good condition and have good prospects.

The revised proposal and the resulting realignment of the building now also allows for
replacement trees to be planted along Melville Street, including four London Plane trees,
as set out within the updated Landscape Strategy.

This is viewed as a positive change to the original scheme submitted for the Outline
application.

The proposed planting scheme although in the Outline stage, identifies a scheme where 4
new single stemmed replacement trees are proposed and another 8 multi stemmed
species in between. London Plane and Silver Birch are amongst those proposed, 2m in
height at planting This will help off set the loss of the existing trees on site which are to be
felled to accommodate the new hotel.

Additional low-level planting is also proposed along the Melville Street frontage, helping to
provide a pleasing environment and helping enhance the quality of the street scape to
Melville Street.

The indicative Landscaping scheme also proposes a scheme of hard landscaping utilising

26



block paving in palette of colours and textures, again to the benefit of the visual amenity of
Melville Street which is presently a relatively poor environment.

The Civic Trust provided comments on the original proposal prior to the revised scheme.
Although welcoming the use, The Trust objected to the application, concerned that the
height and location of the development will result in encroachment onto Melville Street and
restrict the street scene, loss of the footbridge as a means of crossing, vehicular traffic flow
and the loss of the trees.

An objection has also been received from a member of the public regarding the loss of the
footbridge.

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Review

Review of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan commenced in 2019. The 1st Consultation
Draft ("Reg 18") of the Local Plan was published in June 2021, and was subject to public
consultation. Following a review of the public response, the Proposed Submission Draft
("Reg 19") of the Local Plan was published in March 2022, and was subject to a further
round of consultation. On 8th July 2022, the Local Plan Review was submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate in order for it to commence its examination.

The Draft Plan may be a material consideration, where its policies are relevant. Applying
paragraph 48 of the NPPF, the decision maker may give some weight to relevant policies
within the submitted "Reg 19" Plan, with the weight to be given subject to the extent to
which there may still be unresolved objections to those policies (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given).

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.

Conclusion

It is considered that the proposed hotel will help meet the need for visitor accommodation
in the city centre, and provide wider public benefits through improvements to public realm
and increased activity to Melville Street, investment within the city and contributing to the
vitality and viability of the city centre.

The revised scheme as shown on the indicative plans would be an enhancement to the
street scene by developing this gap site and removing the pedestrian footbridge over

27



Melville Street, to the benefit of the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Revisions to the proposal have secured improvements including maintaining views of the
Cathedral and the historic hillside and replacement planting of trees.

The proposed outline application for the principle of the development of the site for a hotel
is therefore considered to be in accordance with both local and national planning policy.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally, subject to the signing of the section 106 for
the provision of electric vehicle charging points within the adjacent Central Car Park.

Standard Conditions

1) The development to which this permission relates shall not be commenced until
details of the following (hereinafter referred to as the "reserved matters") have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

(&) The layout of the Building(s)

(b) The scale of the building(s), including the height, massing and internal
planning.

(c) The external appearance of the building(s), to include details of all external
materials to be used, their colours and textures.

(d) Means of access to, and service roads for the development, including road
widths, radii and sight lines, space for the loading, unloading and manoeuvring and
turning of service vehicles and their parking; space for car parking and
manoeuvring.

(e) A scheme of landscaping for those parts of the site not covered by buildings to
include surface treatments, walls, fences, or other means of enclosure, including
materials, indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land, and details of
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development.

2) Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local
planning authority within three years of the date of this permission.

3) The development hereby permitted shall be begun either within three years of the
date of this permission or within two years of the date of approval of the last of the
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

4) Bat survey prior to demolition of the building on the site

5) Fume Extraction

6) Noise report for both the generation of noise and effect of adjacent noise on the building

7) Standard Preliminary Risk Assessment for Land Contamination

28



8) Archaeological WSI to be submitted with the Reserved Matters application
9) Construction Environmental Management Plan

10) Details of a surface water drainage scheme

29



This page is intentionally blank.



Hotel Waterside South 2022/0159/0UT

31



McCarthy & Stone Development

CAR PARK

Restaurant/ Bar

Indicative ground floor layout plan

32




I FRANKLIN ELLIS ARCHITECTS -==: T e e ey

/4 \_Indicative Axonometric View 1

33



34



SN
j;’ﬁ” el

2 T B

TR P PR =

s

Illustrative Landscaping Scheme

35



_— 4
,—-ﬂ"‘"‘“’“ﬁ g'd
| W é
‘ B
Tl g |

Hill T

L

Illustrative CGI of proposed hotel from Waterside North

36




s
M g e i 2
I oy TR NSO

Indicative View from Melville Street 02

Option B- Planning Submission Rotated Option C- Rotated, set-back & lowered

FRANKLIN

rnhill Quarter — Hotel Site - Lincoln View 19 ADALUITEr

37



Scheme 0-Empty Site

Option B- Planning Submission Rotated Option C- Rotated, set-back & lowered

rnhill Quarter — Hotel Site - Lincoln View 17 igérl\'l’lﬁt"é

Scheme 0-Empty Site

\

-
Option B- Planning Submission Rotated Option C- Rotated, set-back & lowered

2hill Quarter — Hotel Site - Lincoln View 7 FRANKLI!

> 4 ADA/ALIITEYS

38



Option A- Planning Submission

Option B- Rotated ‘ Option C- Rotated, set-back & lowered

39



This page is intentionally blank.



Hotel- Waterside South 2022/0159/0UT

View of application site from Waterside North, including the existing footbridge

City Square and existing shopping centre

41



; v—
P i ] WY =~
!wm " BinZw puy|

= o DU 1
Ty lwulﬂ‘u‘ﬁl, :!111\\

Existing street trees to be removed and existing boundary wall to car park at the site

42



Application site and street trees proposed for removal as viewed from the South on
Melville Street

43




Existing car park on the site

44



View from Pelham Bridge

45



46



\ v.'
<2 g

(RTINS

47



Ivartd A

D

3

48



49



50



51



This page is intentionally blank.



Hotel Waterside South 2022/0159/0UT

Consultation Responses
(oucwo@dropv
anglianvvater o

Planning Applications - Suggested Informative Statements and
Conditions Report

If you would ke to discuss any of the points in this document please
contact us on 07929 786955 or email

plannin @anglisnwsles

AW Site 186678/1/0142374

Reference:

Lol Linwouln Dissteicd (B)

Planning

Authority:

Site: Comer Of Sincll Street & Waterside South
Lincoin

Proposal.  Redevelopment of site 1o provide a new
hotel, together with landscaping and
assodated works, including demolition of all
exsting structures on the site and
demolition of pedestrian footbridge across
Melville Street

Planning 2022/0158/0UT

application:

Prepared by: Pre-Development Team

Date: 5 April 2022

ASSETS

Section 1 - Assets Affected

There are assets owned by Anglian Water or those subject to an adoption agreement within or close 1o the

development boundary that may affect the layout of the site. Anglian Water would ask that the following text be
included within your Notice should permission be granted.

Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are assets subject to an adoption agreement.
Therefore the site layout should take ths nto account and accommodate those assets within eithar prospectively

adoptable highways or public open space. If this is not practicable then the sawers will need 1o be diverted at the
developers cost under Saction 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991_ or, in the case of apparatus under an adoption
agreement, liaise with the owners of the apparatus. I shoulkd be noted that the diversion works should normally be
completed before development can commence.

WASTEWATER SERVICES

Section 2 - Wastewater Treatment

The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Canwick Water Recycling Centre that will have
avaliable capacity for these flows

53



Section 3 - Used Water Network

This response has been basad on the following submitted documents: The sewerage system at present has
available capacity for these flows. ¥ the developer wishes 1o connect 1o our sewerage network they should serve
notice under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991. We will then advise them of the most sultable point of
connection. (1) INFORMATIVE - Notification of intention 1o connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water
Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the Water Industry Act 1991. Contact
Development Services Team 0345 606 6087. (2) INFORMATIVE - Notification of intention to connect to the public
sewer under S106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the
Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 6087. (3) NFORMATIVE - Protection of
exsting assets - A public sewer is shown on record plans within the land identified for the proposed development. it
appears that development proposals will affect existing public sewers. | is recommended that the applicant contacts
Anglian Water Development Services Team for further advice on this matter. Bullding over exsting public sewers will
not be parmitted (without agreement) from Anglian Water. (4) NFORMATIVE - Building near 1o a publc sewer - No
building will be permitied within the statutory easement width of 3 metres from the pipelne without agreement from
Anglian Water. Please contact Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087. (5) INFORMATIVE: The developer
should note that the site drainage detalls submitted have not been approved for the purposas of adoption. If the
developer wishes to have the sewers incduded In a sewer adoption agreemant with Anglan Water (under Sections
104 of the Water Industry Act 1891), they should contact cur Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087 at the
earliest opportunity. Sewers intended for adoption should be designed and constructad in accordance with Sewers
for Adoption guide for developers, as supplementad by Angllan Water's requirements.

Section 4 - Surface Water Disposal

The preferred method of surface waler disposal would be 1o a sustainable drainage system (SuDS) with connection
1o saver seen as the last option. Buliding Regulations (part H) on Drainage and Waste Disposal for England
includes a surface water drainage hierarchy, with infiltration on site as the prefarred disposal option, followed by
discharge to watercourse and then connection 1o a sewer.

From the detalls submitted 1o support the planning application the proposed method of surface water management
does not relate to Anglian Water operated assets. As such, we are unable to provide comments in the sultability of
the surface water management. The Local Planning Authority should seek the advice of the Lead Local Flood
Authority or the Internal Drainage Board. The Enwironment Agency should be consulted # the drainage system
directly or indirectly involves the discharge of water into a watercourse. Should the proposed method of surface
water management change 1o include interaction with Anglian Water operated assets, we would wish 10 be re-
consulted to ensure that an effective surface water drainage strategy is prepared and implemented.

RE: Consultation on Planning Application

Property Strategy <Property_Strategy@Iincolnshire.gov.uk>
To Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links, open attachments or reply unless you are confident that the content is safe and do not share
inappropriately.

Many thanks for the below consultation, LCC has no comments on the application in relation to education.
Sam Barlow
Asset Advisor

Lincolnshire County Council
County Offices, Newland, Lincoln, LN1 1YL

54



From: LN Planning <LNplanning@environment-agency.gov.uk>

Sent: 07 March 2022 14:21
To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: RE: Consultation on Planning Application 2022/0159/0UT

WARNING: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links, open attachments or reply
unless you are confident that the content is safe and do not share inappropriately.

Dear Sir/Madam

The Environment Agency does not wish to make any comments on this application. It does not appear to meet any
of the criteria listed on our External Consultation Checklist and it was therefore not necessary to consult us.

However, if you believe you do need our advice, please call me on the number below.

Kind regards

Nicola Farr

Sustainable Places - Planning Specialist Lincolnshire & Northamptonshire Area, Environment Agency Ceres House,

Searby Road, Lincoln, LN2 4DW (Currently working from home)

nicola.farr@environment-agency.gov.uk
External: 020 302 55023

55



L=y
A Historic Engls

Mz Alex Leatherdand Direct Dial: 0121 625 6870
Lincaln City Councl

City Hal Our ref: PO1467263
Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

LN 1DF 31 March 2022

Dear Ms Leathertand,

TACP (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2018
& Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990

CORNER OF SINCIL STREET & WATERSIDE SOUTH, LINCOLN
Application No. 2022/0158/0UT

Thank you for your letter of 3 March 2022 regarding the above application for planning
permission. On the basis of the information avalable 1o date, we offer fie following
advice (o assist your authority n delermining the application.

Summary

The proposed scheme lies within the setting of Lincoln cathedral (sted Grade 1) and
within the Cathedral and City Centre conservation area. Views towards the cathedral
saen in corpuncion with the histonic hiliside immedaialy surrounding it contribute
greatly to the satling and significance of the cathedral. This includes views from

The proposed scheme is for oulline planning permission for a 7 storey hotel. We
corsader there is an opportunily for a bullding of significant scale at this location and
have no objection 1o the demalition of modern buidings and siructures on this site.
However, we consider thal as currently proposed the holsl would harm the sefling and
significance of Lincoin cathedral and the significance, character and appearance of the
Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area. The impact derives from the intrusion in
wviews of the historic hillside when seen in conjunction with the cathedral. and
obscuring the west end of the cathedrl in some views.

Our advice also reflects policy and guidance provided in the Natonal Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), the NPPF Planning Practice Guidance and in good peactice
advice noles produced by Mistoric England on behalf of the Mistoric Environment
Forum including Managing Significance in Decision-Taking in the Mistaric Environment
and The Ssting of Heritage Assels.

The impact of he proposed scheme would be sigraficantly reduced # the height of the

56



hotel was reduced so that it would obscure less of the cathedral and historic hllside in
key views from Pefham Bridge. Accordingly, we advise that the height of the hotel is
reduced by at least the upper storey and the mpact is verified in kineSc views from the

bridge.
Historic England Advice

Significance

The proposed scheme lies within the setting of Lincoln cathedral (Isted Grade | as one
of the 3% of Isted buldings which are of excepional archileciural and historic interest)
and within the satling of a number of other designated heritage assets. The proposed
scheme also bes within the Cathedral and City Centre conservation area which was

designaied in 1688 (amended in 1675) by your authority.

A key part of the cathedral's significance and selting. located as i is on the north
escarprment high above the Witham gap and lower city, is that it dominales the city,
siyline and surrounding fownscape and landscape. This domination was intentional
and meant 1o glerify God and signily the importance of the Church. The historic
fownscape on the north escarpment and hillside, including the cathedral and Lincoin
castie (a scheduled monument), is the most mportant historic lownscapes in
the country. It forms a central part of the and City Centre conservalion area
and incudes many other highly designated heritage assets as well as the catedral.

Views towards the cathedral seen in conjunction with the hisloric hilside contnibute
greatly lo the setling and significance of the cathedral. The views form part of the
dentity of Lincoln as a historic aty. They aiso make a strong contribusion o he
significance, characler and appearance of the conservaton area Wider and longer
views that encompass larger areas of the historc hilside around the cathedral form
some of the most iconic views of Lincoln and the cathedral. This includes views from

Peiham Bridge.

The view of the cathedral and historic hillside is recent, although # replaces earfier
views from ground level in that location. Nonetheless #t is seen by many thousands of
people a day who use ths busy road and so confributes strongly Io peopie’s
expenance of the cathedral and hstoric Lincoln.

There are relalively few places in the centre of Lincoin where views of the cathedral
within its immediate setting of e histonc hilside can be seen. The character of the
historic hillside in these views s of an irregular lownscape with sigriicant tree cover.
Due in part to the sioping ground, the lower city townscape merges seamiessly with
the histonc hilside in these views and appears manly as a succession of roofs
puncluated by treas as well as the spire of St Swithin's church (sted grade I°).
However. Thomgate House infrudes in some views of the cathedral and historc
hikside as an uncharacienstically @all buiding in the lower city, and within the
consarvation area Il obscures part of the hisloric hillside in key views.

57



Impeact of the proposed schems

The proposed scheme is for oulline planning permission for a 7 storey hotel. Given the
scale and form of the multi.storey car park 1o the south of the site we consider there is
an opporiunity for a buiding of significant scale al this location. We slso have no
objection 1o the demalition of modem buildings and structures on this sile. Mowever,
we consider that as currently proposed the hotel would harm the setting and
significance of Lincoin cathedral and the significance, characier and appearance of the
Catheadral and City Centre Conservation Area. The impact derives from the intrusion in
wviews of the historic hillside when seen in conjunction with the cathedral and

the west end of the cathedral in some views. The proposed hotel would extend above
the mulli-siorey car park in these key views.

Legisiation, poiicy and guidance )

As you are aware, he statutory requirement 1o have special regard 1o the desirability
of presesving a Bsted buliding or ils sefling or any features of specal architeciural or
historic inlerest which & possesses (s. 68(1) of the Planning (Listed Bulldings and
Conservation Areas) Act. 1990) must be taken into account by your authority in

dedermining this planning application.

The statutory requirement 1o pay specal attention 1o the desirabilty of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area (.72, 1990 Act) must
also be taken inlo account by the local authority in determining this application.

Our advice also reflects policy and guidance provided in the Natonal Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF), the NPPF Planning Practice Guidance and in good practice
advice notes produced by Mistoric England on behalf of the Mistoric Environment
Forum including Managing Signficance in Decision- Taking in the Mistaric Environment

and The Seiting of Meritage Assels.

Paragraph 194 of the NPPF advises that in delermining applications. local plarning
authorities should require an applicant to describe the sigrificance of any heritage
assets affecied. The leved of detall should be proporionade to the assets’

and no more than is sufficient o understand the potential impact of the proposal on
ther significance. Paragraph 195 goes on 1o say that local planning authorities should
dentify and assass the particulsr significance of any heritage asset that may be
affected by a proposal taking account of the avalable evidence and any necessary
expertise. They should take this nlo account when considering the impact of a
proposal on a herilage assel, 1o avoid or minimise any confict between the herilage
asset's conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

The importance altached b setling is recogrised by the NPPF and in guidance and

advice. The NPPF defines the setting of a hesitage assel as ‘e surroundings in which
a heritage assel is experienced (Annex 2). Detasied advice on assessing the impact of

58



WMMMdaWQQbﬁNM The Sefting of Mentage
and advice on sefling outines factors which may influsnce the
mdhmuhmdaw-dnﬂcta.m
here (p8.11). The setting advice also highlights aspects of a development which may
nfluence its impact on the salling and significance of a heritage asset (p12.13)

The NPPF is clear in the requirement 1o take account of the desirability of sustaning
and enhancing the significance of heritage assels and the posilive contribution that
conservation of heritage assets can make 1o sustanable communities (paragraph 197,

The NPPF goes on 10 say that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designaled heritage asset, great weight should
be given o its conservation (paragraph 198, NPPF). Any harm or loss 1o

‘shouks require clear and convincing justification’ (paragraph 200, NPPF)

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states that where a development proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm o e significance of a designated hevitage assel, this ham
should be weghed against the public benefits of the proposal.

Posiion

The application should specifically assess the impact of the proposed scheme on the
significance of the cathedral which #t doesn do ot present. Whilst there is an
opportunity 10 put a kage scale bullding on tis siie. as noted above the proposed
scheme harms the significance and setling of Lincoin Cathedral and the significance.
characier and appearance of the conservation area The harm would be crealed, n
part, by the holed extending above the mulli storey car park. The impact of the
proposed scheme would be significantly reduced if the height of the hotel was reduced
30 that it would obscure less of the historic hillside in key views from Pelham Bridge.
We advise that the height of the hotel is reduced by af least the upper siorey. We
recommend that kinetic views from slong the northbound carriageway are produced o
fully understand the impact of e proposad hotel in hese views and the effect of
lowering the height of the hotel. We consider that his can be achieved using model
wews rather than new photography .

It is essential that the design of a hotel on this site. ncluding detailed design, is of a
high quality and a clear, specific Design Code is required in this respect. We advise
that the design code included reads more as a justification of the design approach. We
recommend that a much more detailed and spedfic design code is provided in
accordance with national guidance.

Historc England has concems regarding the applcation on hentage grounds. Your
authority should take these representations nto account and seek amendments,

s Me -a

59



A Historic Engls
DO Bk

safeguards or further information as sat out in our advice If here are any matesisl
changes to the proposals, or you would like further advice, pleass contact us.

Yours sinceredy
David Walsh

Principal Inspector of Hstoric Buddings and Areas
E-mai. david walsh@HatoricEngland org uk

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE POUCE HEADQUARTERS
PO Box 859

LINCOLN LNS 7PH
Fax: (01522) 558128
DO (01522) 558292

emat

ot marusiiires gre golas uk
Your Ret.  App. 20220158 4" March 2022
Our Ret: PG
Planning Department
Gty Hail, Beaumont Foe
Uncoln LN1 10F

Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Consultation on Outline Planning Permission

Cormer Of Sincil Street & Waterside South, Lincoln

Redevelopment of site to provide a new hotel, together with landscaping and
associated works, including demolition of all existing structures on the site and
demolition of pedestrian footbridge across Melville Street

Thank you for your correspondence dated 2 March 2022 and the opportunity 1o comment on
e proposed development. | have studied e online plans and would request hat you
consider the following points that if adherad to would help reduce the cppartunity for crime and
mncorease the safety and sustanabiity of the development on this sile.

Lincoinshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application.

Reception /| Entrances

This area should be well illuminated and welcoming with e reception staff able 1o with a clear
view of the approaches 1o the entrance

| would recommend that the entrance 10 e recepbion is an ‘ar ook’ system whenety two sets
of doors are used. e first apening wit allow a visior through Ino a sease vestbule operated
by way of controlied form of acoess with the capacty for entrance to be ganed once the first
door is secured Such a considered system wil mumnmmmzr
access by any unwanted access and would provide safety, secunty and reassurance %0

and guests. The reception should provide subie staffing or altemative measures or
operating systems to allow for 247 supervision of security and access  the hotel.

60



Signage.

Effective use of drecional and iInformative signage can do much fo reduce e opporiunity for

any persons accessing the siie and not knowing where they should be. Ste maps and clear
directions 10 the reception or security office wil reduce any opportursty for urwarranied

respass on Te sie

Ugnting
wmuwmmmmmwmwwm
aganst vandalsm. The overall ighting scheme should be well considered and

dstribute bght avosding dark shadows. provide mmmaac-

ight potuson and eflecively support formal and informal survetiance within the

A good ighting system can be cost effective and ensure that there will be 2 witness 1o any
ntrusion. it should alow sta® and guests © feel secure and safe. Importantly t should make
niruders feel vuinerabile and that there &5 an increased likelihood of being challenged.

internal Lighting

R s advised most intemal ighting & Inked o detection devices that turns lighting an and off as
required based on movernent actvity. This type of system reduces ensigy consumplion and
will iderafy the presence and progress of intruders 1 e bulkiing when dosed.

Ughting should be designed 1o cover all externial doors

Landscaping

Boundanes between pubiic and what is private space should be clearly dedned and open
accessbie spaces should not alow for any unintended purpose which may cause any foem of
antisocial behaviour or nuisance. | would recomemend that these spaces are defined dearly
by low level {carefully considered) plansng of limied growsh heght and manienance
shrubbery (maximum growth hesght of 1m)

Extornal Doors & Windows

The Secured by Design requirement for all external door sets is PAS 24 2016 (doors of an
erhanced securty )

NI windows must conform to improved standard 8BS TR0 1997 A fioor
windows should be laminated safety glazing (B8S EN 358 2000 rating P2A) manmum)
n windows below S00mm (from floor level) or 1500mm f within 300mm of a doorframe.

Al windows should include easily lockatie hardware unless a designated fire egress roule.

Windows should have secure restraning devices (his 1s particulary 10 be recommended on
e ground and first floor accomemodation 10 deter and prevent urwanied acoess.
Consideration 10 10p down or bomom-up hinges (subject 10 fire regulasons)

CCTV Systam

A comprahensive monitored CCTV should be included throughout the sile with appropriate
sgnage

Should it be considered appropriate a pofice response mondiored system D with instaliation 1o

EN 501311 (PDOSE2 Scheme for the implementation of Evsopean Standards ). or BS 8418 for
a detector activated CCTV systemn.

61



Rear Access & Drop Off Zones

1 would recommend Sl the rear (private ) acoess road and drop off zones is provided with
access control at both ends of the private roadway. Such access conol should iInclude an
appropriate and seoure gated system that would restrct anomymous and unwanted acoess.

Whilst | appireciate the requirements and operational needs of the hotel such access control
and secunty measures should dealy be 24/7 but may be specified penods n which
case mitigation should be provided by the effectve use of and oriother measures
control access.

1 would recommend that s development Incorporates the actwevernent of a &l
Secured by validation which would support and reflect the highest of standards in

terms of the safety and soaustty
Flease do not hesitate 1o contact me should you need further Information or clanfication.

Crme prevention advice & gven free wihout e mtention of creating a contract.  Netther the
Home Office nor the Police Service hikes any legal resporsibilty for the adwice given
However, If the advice & mplemenied & will reduce the opporunty for crimes to be commitied.

Yours sincerely,

62



Llncolnshlre“F

COUNTY CoUNCIL
Aforting

Warren Peppard

Hiao of Development Managemen
Lincol nshilre County Councll
County Offices

Mawlang

Lincoim LMW1 1YL

Tel: 01522 TE2OT0

e e e Y

To:  Lincoln Chy Cowncdl Applcation Ref: 1022 /DASS0UT

Propasal: Regevelopment of IEE L0 PrOVIGE 3 MW POt Togethes With landsoageng and
SEEociated works, indleding demolition of all existing Strutures on the dite and
demoiition of pedestrian Feotbrdge across Melville Street

Loacation: Comer Of Sincil Street & Waterside South, Lincaln

With reference 1o the abowe application received I March 2022

Motice 5 hereby gren chat the County Councl a5 Local Hghway ana Lead Local
Fiood Aartharity:

Rrgueests that any permission given by the Lol Planning Authority shall
Iinchede the Conditions below.

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASDNS|

This & an casthine applicagion with 3cceis 10 be ronuiderned. It weeis permivman (o demallh
the existing bl dings within the ste curtilage and the foatbridge over Mehille Street and
erect 3 hoted,

The site is oorrently a vacant car park and servioe yand.

It is sibuated in 2 highly sustaina ble iocation within the city-centre, an the doorstep of the

Transpamn Hub and within easy walling distance of faclites, amenities, and Jttractors for
wislibors during their stay.

‘Wehi cular acoess s prowided nﬂmnm_manumm-mm:m

created along the western side of the hotel (o connect to the exsting senice yard to the
souith.
A dedicated wehiosar acoess for hotel guests into the Lincoln Central multh storey car park is

63



A drop-off area will be provided at the front of the hotel.
The service street will also be utifised for deliveries and servicing.

The wehicular access a5 proposed will be Block paved and Inkeeping with Waterside South,
with 2 tight visible rackus but reinforced paving construction either side as protection from
overrun,

There |5 an existing slip lane on Broadgate which currently serves as an access to the vacant
car park, which will require remaval with the area being returned to footway.

Lemoigion of the 10QIRCAES

LOC as Highway Authorty engaged in extensve pre-appiication ducussions with the applicant
in advance of the planning submission in refation to the proposed remowal of the footbridge.

The foctbridge provides 3 necessary east - west connection across Sroadgate and s in

regular use 25 3 public highway. This connection is of strategic importance and Is reflected in
the Lincoln Transport Strategy and the Lincaln Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Man
in refation to National Cycle Route 84, This connection & also essential for facitating future

regeneration to deprived areas to the east of Broadgate.

The Lincoin Transport Strategy 2018 - 2036 ksts Broadgate Public Realm and Environmental
improvements as a primary infrastructure intervention. The opening of the Lincoln Eastern

Bypass has provided opportunity to enhance the area and stimulate economic growth using
Interventions such as improved walking and cychng faciities and measures to reduce vehicle

peeds. The scheme is currently at an early design stage and an essentlal element of the
project will be to improve the east-west connection at Melville Street/Watorside
North/Waterside Sowth junction.

Uncoinshire County Councll support the removal of the footbridge with necessary mitigation,
10 support thes appication and facilitate growth

In consideration of the emerging Broadgate Corridor scheme, LCC and the appliicant wish 1o
avoid the applicant delivering a project immediately which mitigates the removal of the
footbridge, but which may act 25 3 constraint for the Broadgate Corndor scheme.

The applicant undertock a Pedestrian Environment Review System (PERS) audit on Sroadgate
10 support this appication, which demonstrated that there was no short-term acverse effect
on public highway users ¥ the foothridge were to be removed, given the presence of the

wgralised pedestrian crossngs at St Swithing Square and Newton Street a4 atemnate options,

We accept that in the short term, highway users have altemate options 1o crass Medvilie

Street that are comparable to the footbridge. However, the displacement of highway users to
the alternate crossings &s 3 short term solution a5 consideration must be glven the strategic
noed for improved walking and cycling faclites at this location.

64



We reguest a Section 106 contribution of £500,000 as metigation for the removal of the
footbridge, to provide improved walking and cycling infrastructure at this location.
At this stage, tmescales for dellvery of the Broadgate Corridor scheme are unknown, thaugh

this will be the preferred mechanism to deliver the required Improvements which mitigate
the remaval of the footbridge and achieve the strategic aims cutlined in the Lincoin

Transport Strategy. If the Broadgate Corridor scheme is not delivered within 3 suitable
timeframe, the Highway Authority will be required to deliver a project to directly mitigate the
removal of the footbridge and provide the necessary east-west connection. This will be
through the delivery of 3 sgnalised pedestrian crossing.

The S106 contribution cost has been based on an uncertainty model for the delivery of 2
sgralised pedestrian crossing on Melvilie Street at the junction with Waterside South.
Preliminary studies undertaken by the applicant indicated that there were services within the
eastern footway which would require diversion at significant cost. This has been accounted
for In the uncertainty model which & why the expected scheme cost & higher than would
usually be expected.

rghway Condition 00

No development shall take place until 3 Construction Management Plan and Method
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Autharity
which shall indicate measures to mitigate against traffic generation and drainage of the skte
during the construction stage of the proposed development.

The Construction Management Plan and Method Statement shall iInclude;

¢ phasing of the development to indude access construction;

o the parking of vehicles of site aperatives and visors,

* loading and undoading of ptant and materals;

¢ storage of plant and matenals used in constructing the development,

o wheel washing faciities;

¢ the routes of construction traffic to and from the site incduding any off site routes for the
disposal of excavated material and;

* strategy stating how surface water run off on and from the development will be managed
during construction and protection measures for any sustairable drainage features. This

should inchude drawing(s) showing how the dranage systems (permanent or temporary)

connect 10 an outfall (temporary or permanent) during construction.

The Canstruction Management Plan and Method Statement shall be strictly adhered to
throughout the construction period.

Reaon: To ensure that the permitted development i adequatedy drained without creating or
increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent to, or downstream of, the permitted
development during constructson and to ensure that sustable traffic routes are agreed

Hghway Condition 21
No part of the development hereby permitted shall be cccupied before the works to improve
the public highway (by means of removing the siip lane on Mehalle Street and returning the

area 10 footway) have been certified compiete by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the provision of safe and adeguate means of acoess 1o the permitted

development.

65



Hghway Informative 07
The highway improvement works referred to in the above condition are required to be
carried out by means of a legal agreement between the landowner and the County Council,

35 the Local Highway Authority.

Hghway Condition 13
The permitted development shall be undertaken in accordance with 3 surface water dranage
scheme which shall first have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shalt
¢ be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and
hydrogealogical context of the development;
* provide flood exceedance routing for storm event greater than 1 in 100 year;
o provide details of how run-off will be safely conveyed and attenuated during storms up o
and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm event, with an allowance for cimate change,
from all haedt surfaced areas within the development Into the exsting local drasnage
infrastructure and watercourse system without exceeding the run-off rate for the
undevedoped ste,
* provide attenuation details and discharge rates, 3s 3 betterment of the existing brownfield
rates,
* provide detads of the timetable for and any phasing of implementation for the drainage
scheme;
and
* provide detalls of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed over the lifetime of
the development, including any arrangements for adoption by any putiic body or Statutary
Undertaker and any other arrangements required to secure the aperation of the drainage
system throughout its lifetime.
No part of the development shall be occupied untll the approved scheme has been
comgpieted or provided on the ste In accordance with the approved phasing. The approved
wheme shall be retained and maintained In full, In accordance with the approved detals.
Reason: To ensure that the permitted development & adequately drained without creating o
increasing flood risk to land or property adjacent 1o, or downstream of, or upstream of, the
permitec development

Hghway Informative 02

In accordance with Section 58 of the Highways Act 1580, please be considerate of causing
damage to the existing highway during construction and implement mitigation measures as
noCossary.

Should extraordinary expenses be incurred by the Highway Authority in maintaining the
highway by reason of damage caused by construction traffic, the Highway Autharnty may seek
10 recover these expenses from the developer.

Hghway Informative 03

The permitted development reguines the formation of 3 new/amended vehicular access.
These works will require approval from the Highway Authority in accordance with Section
184 of the Highmways Act The works should be constructed In accordance with the Authority’s
specification that i current at the time of construction. Relocation of exsting apparatus,
underground services or street fumniture will be the responsiblity of the applicant, prior 1o
appication. For application guidance, approval and specification detalls, please visit

https// www_lincoinshire gow. uk/licences permits/apply-dropped kerd or contact
vehicecrossings@iincotnshire gov uk

66



righway Informative 08

Mease contact the Lincolnshire County Councl Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522
TE2070 to discuss any proposed statutory utiity connections and any other works which will
be reguired within the public Mghway In association with the development permitted under
this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Coundcil 1o assist in the coordination and

timings of these works.
For further guidance phease visit our website via the following Snks:

Traffic Management - https://www Ancolnshire gov uk/traffic management
Licences and Permits - hetps://www.lincolnshire gov. ul/Scences permits

Case Officer: Date: 15 August 2022
Becky Melbvnish

for Wamen Peppard

Head of Development Management

67



Consultee Comments for Planning Application
2022/0158/0UT

Appication Summary
Application Number: 2022/01500UT

Address: Corner Of Sincil Street & Waterside South Lincoln

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a new hotel, together with landscaping and assocated
works, including demaoiition of afl existing structures on the site and demolition of pedestrian
footbridge across Melvile Street

Case Officer: Alex Leatheriand

Consuites Detalia

Name: Ms Catherine Waby

Address: St Mary's Guildhall, 385 High Street, Lincoln LNS 7SF
Emai: Not Available

On Behall Of Lincoln Civic Trust

Commants

OBJECTION

We have viewed this application in conjunction with 2022/01 28FUL and many of our comments
will be the same. We have no objection to change of use from retai and car park inlo hotel as ths
seems a sensible use of the site. We would question the viabslity of the project and would suggest
hat if the retirement kving proposal were o be siretched 1o cover this site, the height of the
proposals could be reduced, the number of car parking spaces could be increased and the access
would be more acosplable.

Viewing this application in isclalion, our comments are as follows:

1. Ahough this is an culline application, the suggesied buiding is not in ine with the new multi-
storey car park and perturbs further into Melville Sireet creating a narrower corridor and further
restncting the street scene.

2. We do not acoept any of the arguments put forward for the necessity to remove the pedestrian
bridge over Mehdle Streel. We would have no abjection 1o # being re-designed but the total
removal takes away a very safe way 1o cross the main arfery that is Broadgate and Melville Street.
There have been numercus accdents on the pedestnian crossing near Rumbold Street, as this is a
dangerous place o site a crossing with 1oo much going on which distracts drivers. Even with the
reducton in traffic faclitated by the cpering of the Eastern By-Pass, this route through the city is
going to remain a busy and major fhharoughfare and compietely separating traffic from pedestrians
should be the main goal. Removing this bridge is a slep in the wrong drection.

3. Traffic fiow from the development will have 1o tumn north and hence o raved south, they will
have o turn into St Swithins Square then Bank Street and then Silver Street which will bring more
raffic info the centre of the city rather then remaving #t from the area.

4. There appears io be no faciity for coaches bringing peaple 1o the hoted as the route around the

building looks too tight for coaches to be able to manipulate and no where to park up whist
unloading. The same problem would apply for delivery of supplies to the hotel.
5. We are concemned about the total loss of trees on the Melville Street side with no plans to re-

plant

68



Comments for Planning Application 2022/0159/0UT

Application Summary
Application Number: 2022/0159/0UT

Address: Comer Of Sincil Street & Waterside South Lincoin

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a new hotel, together with landscaping and associated
works, including demolition of all existing structures on the site and demolition of pedestrian
footbridge across Melville Street

Case Officer: Alex Leatherland

Customer Detalls

Name: Not Available

Address: Thesiger Street LINCOLN

Comment Detalls

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:What kind of idiot wants to knock the bridge over broadgate down.
The only person would be someone who has never used it.

| guess like the stuffing up the lower high street the council will just overrule the objections
In a closed meeting So much for democratic world.

Sending this comment before going further incase this link disappears!

If "something happens” on broadgate like it has before & shut as its a pedestrian bridge going to
be one big inconvenience of walking round more so if raining

69



Comments for Planning Application 2022/0159/0UT

Application Summary
Application Number: 2022/0159/0UT

Address: Corner Of Sincil Street & Waterside South Lincoln

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide a new hotel, together with landscaping and associated
works, including demolition of all existing structures on the site and demolition of pedestrian
footbridge across Melville Street

Case Officer: Alex Leatherland

Customer Detalls
Name: Not Available
Address: 65 London Road, Spalding Spalding

Comment Detalls

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer made comments neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

Comment:Thank you for referring this application to Lincolnshire Bat Group for comment. We note
this is an outline application, and that the bat part of the Preliminary Ecological Assessment
required a nocturnal bat survey to be carried out on Building 1 between May and August 2021.
The survey was done in August. Was this carried out?

70



Iltem No. 4b

Application Number: | 2023/0182/PAT

Site Address: Adjacent To Post Office, Parklands Food Store, Boultham Park
Road, Lincoln

Target Date: 13th May 2023

Agent Name: Clarke Telecom LTD

Applicant Name: N/A

Proposal: Installation of 15m high slim-line monopole, supporting 5 no.

antennas, 2 no. equipment cabinets, 1 no. electric meter cabinet
and ancillary development thereto including 1 no. GPS module.
(Amended Site Address)

Background - Site Location and Description

The application is for determination as to whether prior approval is required for the
installation of a 15m high slim-line monopole, supporting 5 no. antennas, 2 no. equipment
cabinets, 1 no. electric meter cabinet and ancillary development on Boultham Park Road.

The proposed site is located on the east side of Boultham Park Road, to the north of the
roundabout. The site sits within the public highway, adjacent to the brick boundary wall of
the Co-op Parklands food store and Post Office. To the north/east and south of this section
of Boultham Park Road is characterised by commercial premises, with some containing
residential flats above, Home Grange three storey apartment building is located behind the
co-op store with vehicle access taken adjacent to the stores. Directly opposite the site to the
northwest is a bus stop with Saints Peter and Paul Catholic Church located beyond. The
wider area is characterised by predominately two storey properties.

This application is submitted under Part 16 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (GPDO) as amended by the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) (Amendment) (no.2)
Order 2016.

Paragraph A.1(1)(c)(ii) of the GPDO sets out the permitted development right to install masts
of up to 25m above ground level on land which is on a highway. The proposed monopole
would be 15m in height. The proposed ground-based apparatus would not exceed 15m in
height. The siting of the associated cabinets at the bottom of the monopole are therefore
permitted development. However, prior approval is required for the monopole in terms of its
siting and appearance.

A declaration has been submitted with the application to confirm that the equipment is in line
with International Commission on Non-lonizing Radiation Protection Public Exposure
Guidelines (ICNIRP).

The application has been bought before Planning Committee at the request of Councillor
Bob Bushell.

Site History

No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 21st March 2023.

71



Policies Referred to

e Policy LP26 Design and Amenity
e National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

In determining this prior approval application the Local Planning Authority can only consider
the siting and appearance of the proposed telecommunications equipment.

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted January 2023.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment
Highways & Planning No objections
Environmental Health Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address
Mrs Anne Wilson 236A Boultham Park Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN6 7SU
Mr George Wilson 236A Boultham Park Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN6 7SU
Mr Paul Draper 38 Faulding Way
Grimsby
DN37 9SE
Councillor Bob Bushell
Mr John Wearing Apartment 34 Home Grange Boultham Park Road
(Chairman of Home Grange Lincoln LN6 7ST
Residents Association)

Consideration

General Permitted Development Order

Part 16 of the GPDO permits:

72



Development by or on behalf of an electronic communications code operator for the purpose
of the operator’s electronic communications network in, on, over or under land controlled by
that operator or in accordance with the electronic communications code, consisting of:

(a) the installation, alteration or replacement of any electronic communications
apparatus,

(b) the use of land in an emergency for a period not exceeding 18 months to station
and operate moveable electronic communications apparatus required for the
replacement of unserviceable electronic communications apparatus, including the
provision of moveable structures on the land for the purposes of that use, or

(c) development ancillary to radio equipment housing.

Part A.3 (4) of the Order states that:
Before beginning the development described in paragraph A.2(3), the developer must apply
to the local planning authority for a determination as to whether the prior approval of the

authority will be required as to the siting and appearance of the development.

National Planning Policy Framework

Section 10 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines the Government's
general approach is to facilitate the growth of new and existing communications
infrastructure. Specifically, paragraph 114 advises that advanced, high quality and reliable
communications infrastructure is essential for economic growth and social well-being.
Planning policies and decisions should support the expansion of electronic communications
networks, including next generation mobile technology (such as 5G) and full fibre broadband
connections.

Paragraph 115 advises that the number of radio and electronic communications masts, and
the sites for such installations, should be kept to a minimum consistent with the needs of
consumers, the efficient operation of the network and providing reasonable capacity for
future expansion. Use of existing masts, buildings and other structures for new electronic
communications capability (including wireless) should be encouraged. Where new sites are
required (such as for new 5G networks, or for connected transport and smart city
applications), equipment should be sympathetically designed and camouflaged where
appropriate.

Furthermore, paragraph 117 advises that for a new mast or base station, the application
should be accompanied by evidence that the applicant has explored the possibility of
erecting antennas on an existing building, mast or other structure and a statement that self-
certifies that, when operational, International Commission guidelines will be met.

Paragraph 130 advises that developments should be sympathetic to local character,
including the surrounding built environment.

Local Policy
LP26 states that development should respect the existing topography, landscape character

and identity, and relate well to the site and surroundings, particularly in relation to siting,
height, scale, massing and form. All development proposals must take into consideration

73



the character and local distinctiveness of the area (and enhance or reinforce it, as
appropriate) and create a sense of place.

Proposed Development

The application advises that there is a requirement to upgrade the CK Hutchison Networks
(UK) Ltd (Three) network to provide improved coverage and capacity, most notably in
relation to 5G services. It is noted that the nature of 5G and the network services it provides
means the equipment and antennas required are quite different to the previous, and existing,
service requirements. New sites will therefore be needed for many reasons, including that
the higher radio frequencies used for 5G do not travel as far as those frequencies currently
in use and that sometimes not all existing sites can be upgraded.

The application includes details of alternative site options that have been considered. It also
specifies the reasons they have been discounted; due to the location of underground
services, that the required coverage would not be achieved and the proximity to residential
properties. It is concluded that the only viable solution is the one being proposed. The
application specifies that the detailed siting and design has been carefully considered to
ensure that the scheme has a limited impact on the locality and general visual amenity.

At the time of writing this report for the planning committee deadline, six days are remaining
on the consultation period with neighbours. Objections have so far been received from the
occupants of 236A Boultham Park Road, Chairman of the Home Grange Residents
Association and 38 Faulding Way Grimsby, citing concerns relating to the impact on visual
amenity, noise from the proposed equipment and objections note that the application
suggests that other sites in residential areas have been discounted due to the proximity to
residential properties. Any further correspondence received during the remaining
consultation period before planning committee will be added to the planning committee
update sheet for viewing.

In relation to potential noise from the proposed equipment, the City Council’s Pollution
Control (PC) Officer has considered the application and advised that he has no objections
to the proposal. It is therefore considered the proposed equipment would not be unduly
harmful to amenity in relation to noise.

The concerns in relation to highway safety due to the cabinets impacting on visibility for
pedestrians and road users. Officers would note that the mobile phone industry has
permitted development rights to place equipment in the public highway. It is also noted that
the Lincolnshire County Council as Local Highway Authority has raised no objections to the
application.

In terms of health concerns, officers cannot consider this if, as set out in the NPPF, the
proposal meets the International Commission guidelines for public exposure. This is
satisfied as the application is accompanied by the necessary ICNIRP declaration.

Consideration of the Siting and Appearance

The proposed monopole which is being applied for would be 15 metres high, this is the
height required to enable 5G, which the applicant states is more prone to shadowing effect
from adjacent buildings, structures and tree canopies. The height needs to avoid the
obstacles.

74



The location has been selected as it has a wide adopted area of the highway in a position
that will not impede pedestrian flow or the safety of passing motorists. Located at the back
edge of the footpath adjacent to the boundary wall with the Co-op Store. Home Grange is
located to the rear of the co-op building, approximately 64m from the proposed site.
Properties on the adjacent side of the street would be located at the closet point
approximately 28m from the site.

There are various items of street furniture in the vicinity of the site along this section of
Boultham Park Road including street lighting and telegraph poles. A number of mature an
non mature trees are also present within the street scene. It is acknowledged that the new
monopole would be of a relatively significant height and whilst it would have an impact on
visual character of the area, this should be balanced against the benefits of providing the
enhanced technology and capacity of 5G. The proposed mast is of a standard ‘slim line’
design, reducing in width from the base of the pole. The diameter and overall form is similar
to many other masts throughout the city and is not considered to be unduly harmful in this
location.

The telecommunications equipment would not result in any excessive visual clutter within
the street. The proposal would not have a harmful impact upon the visual quality of the wider
street scene and therefore there are no grounds upon which to resist such a development.

Conclusion

The siting and design of the telecom'’s equipment is acceptable, and the proposal would not
have an unduly harmful visual impact on the character and appearance of the area, in
accordance with the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Policy LP26 and paragraph 130 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That Prior Approval is required and approved.
Standard Conditions

e Fiver year Time limit of the permission
e Development in accordance with approved plans

75



This page is intentionally blank.



Site location

77



Existing site plan
N

EXISTING SITE PLAN

78



Existing elevations

ROOF HEXGHT «6.0m AGL

79



Proposed site plan

Exaling hus shelier

mouried on new oot Eundaton
Existng 1 1m Nigh wal

Exiting 1 2m ngh hedge

Exinting Jm Ng st Sgmege joe

catimet
rsialed on new Cobeed 100t kardaton

Exintrg 4m carpark ightng & sgnage ocie

Proposed 15.0m High Phass S Street poke.
3G GPS node nsaled X 100 of poe

CARPARK AREA

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

80



Proposed elevation drawing

Proposed

i’ TOP OF PROPOSED 3G STREET POLE
<15.00m AGL {+26.00m AMSL)
CAOF AL ) SR o SRR o

=

e At ;
- —
e
- e
— ammAREmEm)
ﬁmmmmmapamm /"

/

ewwmmmnmmm

HIG GPS node natalled o kop of pole

ROOF HEIGHT +9.0m AGL

TREE HEIGHT «4 0m AGL

\

81



Site photographs

82



83



This page is intentionally blank.



2023/0182/PAT — Public Footpath Adjacent to Co-op Boultham Park Road

Consultation responses

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUMNCIL

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO
CONSULTATION

ON THE FOLLOWING DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

District: Lincoln City Council

Application number: 2023/0182/PAT

Application Type: Prior Approval

Proposal: Installation of 15m high slim-line monopole, supporting 5 no. antennas, 2 no.
equipment cabinets, 1 no. electric meter cabinet and ancillary development thereto
including 1 no. GPS module. (Amended Site Address)

Location: Adjacent to Post Office, Parklands Food Store, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln,
Lincolnshire, LNG6 75T

Response Date: 6 April 2023

This report includes the Substantive response of the Local Highway and Lead Local Flood
Authority to a planning consultation received under the Development Management Order
and includes details of any planning conditions or informatives that should be attached in the
event that parmission is grantad and any obligations to be secured by way of a 5106
agreement.

General Information and Advice
Outline applications and contributions

The anticipated number and type of dwellings and/or the floor space may be set by the
developer at the time of application which is used to assess necessary mitigation. If not
stated in the application, a policy compliant mix will be used. The number and type of
dwellings used when assessing 5106 planning obligations is set out on the first page of this
response.

In the case of outline applications, once the unit mix/floor space is confirmed by

reserved matters approval/discharge of condition a matrix (if appropriate) will be applied to
establish any increase in contributions payable. A further increase in contributions may result
if there is a reserved matters approval changing the unit mix/floor space.

Flease note that although the Definitive Map and Statement proves the existence of any
recorded rights of way, there may be further or higher rights that are not shown on this
document that the County Council is not currently aware of. This would be especially
relevant where the public has had informal access to the site or where there are references
to routes across this in maps or other historic documents. As the County Council has
received no application to recognise further rights of way affecting the site, no more
informed guidance can be offered at this stage.

85



Application number: 2023/0182/PAT

Application Type: Prior Approval

Location: Adjacent to Post Office, Parklands Food Store, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln,
Lincolnshire, LN6 75T

Highway and Lead Local Floed Authority Report

substantive Response provided in accordance with article 22(5) of The Town and Country
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015:

Recommendation: No Objections

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as Highway
Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed development
would not be expected to have an unacceptable impact upon highway safety or a severe
residual cumulative impact upon the local highway network or increase surface water flood
risk and therefore does not wish to object to this planning application.

Comments:;

As Lead Local Flood Authaority, Lincolnshire County Council is required to provide a statutory
planning consultation response with regard to drainage and surface water flood risk on all
Major applications. This application is classified as a Minor Application and it is therefore the
duty of the Local Planning Authority to consider the surface water flood risk and drainage
propaosals for this planning application.

The proposal is for the installation of 15m high slim-line monopale, supporting 5 no.
antennas, 2 no. eguipment cabinets, 1 no. electric meter cabinet and ancillary development
thereto including 1 no. GPS module, and it does not have an impact on the Public Highway or
Surface Water Flood Risk.

MNote for Officer:

If permission is granted, traffic management may prove difficult; the zebra crossing nearby is
being upgraded to a signalised pedestrian crossing, the works are outside a Co-op, the
location is close to Rookery Lane Roundabout, with a bus stop and school opposite.

Informatives:
Highway Informative 08

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522
782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections, Section 50 licences and any
other works which will be required within the public highway in association with the
development permitted under this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to
assist in the coordination and timings of these works. For further guidance please visit our
website via the following link: Traffic Management -
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/traffic-management

Officer's Name: Justine Robson
Officer's Title: Senior Development Management Officer
Date: & April 2023

86



Consultee Comments for Planning Application
2023/0182/PAT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2023/0182/PAT

Address: Adjacent To Post Office Parklands Food Store Boultham Park Rioad Lineoln Lineninshire
LMNG TST

Proposal: Installation of 15m high sim-line monopole. supporfing 5 no. antennas, 2 no. equipment
cabinets, 1 no. electric meter cabinet and ancillary development thereto including 1 no. GPS
module. (Amended Sis Address)

Case Officer: Craig Everion

Consultee Details

Mame: Mr lan Wicks

Address: Directorate OF Developmant And Environmental Services, City Hall, Besumont Fes
Lincoln, Lincolnshire LN1 1DF

Emasil: Mot Available

On Behalf Of Environmental Health

Comments
| confirm that | hawve no objections or observafions fo make regarding this application.

From: Bushell, Bob (City of Lincoln Coundil)
Sent: 28 March 2023 11:39

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: PMlanning application 2023,/0182/PAT
Categories: Milky

Good morning,

As a Moorland ward councillor | would like to request that this application is discussed at a future full Planning
Committee meeting.

Many thanks,
Clir. Bob Bushell

Sent from Outlook for Android

87



Application Summary

Applicaiion Number: 2023/M0182/PAT

Address: Adjacent To Post Office Parklands Food Store Boultham Park Road Lincoln Lincoinshire
LMG TST

Proposal: Installation of 15m high sim-line monopole, suppording 5 no. antennas, 2 no. eguipment

cabinets, 1 no. elecinc meter cabinet and ancillary development thersio including 1 no. GPS
moduls. (Amended Sie Address)

Cass Officer: Craig Everion

Consultes Details

Mame: Mr lan Wicks

Address: Directorate OFf Development And Environmenial Services, City Hall, Besumont Fee
Lincoln, Lincolnshire LN1 1DF

Email: Mot Available

On Behalf Of Environmental Health

Comments

| confirm that | hawve no objechons or ohservaiions io make regarding this application.

Customer Details
MName: Not Available
Address: 2364 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LNG 75U

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The Co-op entrance already causes significant dangerous road and foot path issues.
The location of the proposed monopole and equipment would create additional distraction for
vehicle uses and pedestrians, it would significantly damage the visual amenities of the area and
street, cause additional traffic issues as well as potential health and safety issues and noise issues
from equipment . Installation and future maintenance will also cause significant disruption to a
congested area for both vehicles using the road and pedestrians. It has already been highlighted
that this area, adjacent a senior school, church and shops pose considerable risks to the general
public and school children. . | therefore object to this proposal. The location should be to the rear
of the shop away from the public highway.

88



Customer Details
Name: Not Available
Address: 236A Boultham Park Road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The Co-op entrance already causes significant road safety issues, litter and unsightly
parking issues as well as anti social issues with alarms sounding and deliveries. The location of
the proposed monopole and equipment would future detract from the visual amenities of the area ,
cause additional traffic issues as well as potential health issues and noise issues from equipment.
| therefore object to this proposal. The location should be to the rear of the shop away from the
public highway.

Customer Details
Name: Mot Available
Address: 2364 Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LNE 75U

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Meighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:This proposal will cause additional vehicle and pedestrian safety issues, damage the
visual aspect of the street and surrounding area.

Cause health and safety issues from the equipment via noise and radio waves, the installation and
future maintenance of the equipment and pole will cause additional risks to both road users and
general public as well as school children as the area already suffers from congestion and risks to
life from high traffic use. The pole should be located to the rear of the co-op or other area that is
not next to a public highway or public foot path

89



Customer Detzils
Mame: Mot Avasilsbls
Address: 28 Faulding Way Gnmsby

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Siance: Cusiomer objects fo the Planning Applicaiion

Comment Ressons:

Comment-Hers is 3 excellent ink with loads of informatve factual videos from relisble sowrces.

The dangers of this technology is dearly desdly, indiscriminste and i showld not be easily
scoacisd 35 s3fe

Flezss reconsider this spplicsion baing im 2 high residentsl ares the megstve hasth implicstions
of grving 200hriz pass through the body are now gong raised in every medical journals, you're
going fo have 2 up rise in cancers | blood disorders, and so on. i you're ready for the damage it
will cause _and il hesith it will bring

Profiis before people’s heslth and safiely will not be sccepiad nor will the excuss | was jusi doing
rry job in amy court of |=v when people are hedd accountsble.

90



Customer Details

Mame: Mr JOHN WEARING

Address: APPT 34 HOME GRAMNGE BOULTHAM P BOULTHAM PARK ROAD LINCOLM LMNG
5T

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Amenity Group

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasans:

CommentREPRESENTATION by HOME GRANGE RESIDENTS ON THE PROPOSED RADIC
BASE STATION REF LOC 20230182PAT

Initizlly we would sizie that we are not against the instaliation of wirgless masts.

Howewer, we are concernad that the siting of this particular mast lesves much to be desired. The
position next fo am already busy road and pedesirian area will only lzad to more problems in this
area. The resiricting of the footpath width, especially whilst maintenance on the cabineis is being
undertaken, would mean that pedestnians would have to use the road to pass with the increased
danger of accidents. Thers is no-where for engineer's maintenance vehicles to park adjacent 1o
the cabinats.

The applicants state that they hawve surveyed and rejzctad 10 sites in the area, but they hawve not
considered any other sites in close proximity. Two of the rejecied posifions, no's 8 and 9 in letter to
Councillor C. Wati daied 22 February 2023 ref LON26742, are both rejecied on the basis of that
they are surrounded by residential properties. [t should be noted that the chosan position = also
surrounded by residential properties and especially Home Grange which is a 3 storey, 35
Apartment, Residential property. This has been totally overookad in the submission. It is siusted
at the rear of the Coop and im not shown on any plan drawings submitted and is a very significant
residential building. It is of a similar height fo the Coop.

There does not appear to be any information as to why this particular position has been chosen or
reasoning 2= fo why it is the only suitsble spat in the area. However, there ars at least 4 positions.
eminently suitable nearby which would cause minimal disruption and be very safe having no need
for the cabinets or monopole to encroach upon the footpath. These are: -

1. Grassed area in front of library.

2. Parking are= fo rear of library.

3. Grassed area between the lbrary and police houssa.

4. Wasie land between police house and Coop store.

We are also concemed that the proximity of Home Grange retirement apariments has NOT been
taken in account at all. The building is approximately the same height as the Coop with the 2nd
floor apartments especially Mos 24 to 37 inclusive being only 2 metres lower i.e. T metres from
ground level and in direct uninterrupted line of sight to the proposed monopole asrals. As the
lowest aerials will be at height of 11.5 metres (see information supplied by applicant). Thus, the
apartments will only be 4.5 metres below the ssrals not 11.5 metres.

e feel that this should be addressed with a formal EMF radiation patiern diagram being actioned
and be part of the application. The supplied information with regard to radiation levels is purely
based on research and theoretical information but not on the actual situation at this position.
These spartments are permanently shways occupied.

We therefore object to this proposal.
Johin Wearing

Chairman Home Grange Residents Association
On behalf of Home Grange residenis after meeting on 04 April 2023

91



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE 19 APRIL 2023
SUBJECT: CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 174
DIRECTORATE: COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

REPORT AUTHOR: KIERON MANNING, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR - PLANNING

Purpose of Report

To have confirmed one (temporary) Tree Preservation Order, made by the
Planning Manager under delegated powers. The order currently provides six
months of temporary protection for the trees but is required to be confirmed by the
Planning Committee to provide long term future protection.

Executive Summary

A Tree Preservation Order gives statutory protection to trees that contribute to the
amenity, natural heritage or attractiveness and character of a locality.

The making of any Tree Preservation Order is likely to result in further demands
on staff time to deal with any applications submitted for consent to carry out tree
work and to provide advice and assistance to owners and others regarding
protected trees. This is, however, contained within existing staffing resources.

The making of Tree Preservation Orders reduces the risk of losing important trees,
groups of trees and woodlands. It further allows the Council to protect trees that
contribute to local environment quality.

The proposal is to modify the boundary of the boundary of the temporary TPO to
take account of policy decisions whilst also retaining significant areas of woodland.

Background

Tree Preservation Order 174 was made on 2"¢ November 2022 and relates to two
areas of identified woodland made up of mixed trees consisting mainly of Betula
pendula (silver birch), Prunus avium (sweet cherry), quercus robur (english oak),
fraxinus excelsior (European ash), acer campestre (field maple) and alnus
glutinosa (black alder).

The trees are considered to contribute to the visual amenity of the wider area and
the unauthorised removal of the trees would be considered to be detrimental to
visual amenity and to the wider amenity of the area.

The initial 6 months of protection would end for the Tree Preservation Order on 2"
May 2023.

93



Consideration

The reason for making a Tree Preservation Order on this site is as a result of a
request from local residents who wanted to ensure no loss of trees from any future
development on the site. The Arboricultural Officer carried out a site visit and
identified the trees and areas of woodland to be suitable for protection under a
Tree Preservation Order stating that the trees have a significant amenity value,
forming a prominent feature of the area and their removal would have a harmful
effect on the appearance and amenity of the area.

A four-week consultation period was undertaken with local residents and a copy of
the Tree Preservation Order was sent to the registered land-owners.
Representations were received from the landowners, from their partners in a
potential development of the site and from residents adjacent to the site. The
detailed survey of the site was reviewed as part of the consultation process and
this also took account of the application for outline planning permission that the
applicants have made to Lincolnshire County Council for the erection of houses
within the quarry.

This application, together with the imminent allocation of the site for housing in the
newly prepared Central Lincolnshire Local Plan proposes to take entry to the site
from Riseholme Road. The site is still the subject of restoration conditions from its
time as a quarry which means that, very unusually, the County Council is the
planning authority. The application proposes to use the material which is located
within bunds on the east and west sides of the quarry as fill prior to housebuilding.
The bunds were created from material taken from the quarry in the first instance
and these bunds were designed to protect local residents from the quarrying
activity. Trees were planted on and beyond these bunds at the same time and, as
is evidenced by many of them retaining the tree guards that were put in place at
the time of planting, these trees have grown unmanaged over the time period
since they were planted. The Local Plan has addressed the development of this
site directly and proposed at the draft stage that the bunds around the quarry were
retained to protect the amenities of local residents when the new houses were
developed. Since the Examination in Public for the Local Plan, when the policy in
relation to the quarry was discussed in detail, the wording of the policy has been
considered further by the Inspector who led the Examination in Public and he has
commented as follows::

- Land at Cathedral Quarry, Riseholme Road (COL/MIN/O05) includes
requirements to retain the bunds around the site and the enhancement of
biodiversity. However, keeping the bunds is not the only way of achieving the
necessary separation between existing and proposed new housing or of
enhancing biodiversity on the site. The bunds could also be reused to help fill
the former quarry and a new landscaping scheme could help ensure an overall
net gain in biodiversity, potentially including any existing wildlife corridors and
protected trees. To ensure that the allocation is effective and justified, both
requirements are therefore modified by MM47.

This statement will form the basis of the wording for a revision to the new Local
Plan policy.

94



The consideration of the planning application is not a matter for this Committee;
the consideration is whether to confirm the tree preservation order No;174. It is
proposed that the original boundary for the TPO (attached at Appendix 1) which
was set out in order to protect all of the trees within it and give the necessary time
for those trees to be assessed in detail, is amended to the boundary set out in
appendix 2. This provides protection to a significant belt of trees along either side
of the quarry without inhibiting development that the Local Plan has agreed to
allow and most importantly the area of woodland within the revised proposal
contains the most significant trees.

Equally members will appreciate that those trees outside of the revised area
proposed for the TPO, whilst not protected, do not necessarily need to be removed
and this would be a matter for consideration by the County Council when
determining the planning application for the houses and for the Cathedral as the
owners of the site. Any matters of biodiversity net gain associated with the
development of the land would also be considered as part of the planning
application.

Strategic Priorities

Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 174 would ensure that the trees would
not be removed or worked on without the express permission of the Council which
would be considered detrimental to visual amenity and as such the protection of
the trees would contribute to enhancing our remarkable place.

Organisational Impacts

Legal Implications — anyone wishing to carry out works to the trees will require
consent from the City of Lincoln Council first.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Members confirm the Tree Preservation Order with the

suggested modifications to the boundary, and that the Officer carries out the
requisite procedures for confirmation.

How many appendices does

the report contain? One — plans of original and revised boundary for the
woodland TPO.

List of Background Papers: Representations received.

Lead Officer: Kieron Manning, Assistant Director - Planning

Telephone (01522) 873551

95



Appendix 1 — Original temporary boundary

L
Crang

—

Cathedral Quarry (dis)

vy FINOHEEE

peoy Ve |8a1S SIS

L___——'
.-H-'
1 Crown copyright and dafabass rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100018414 1—"_'_1' /\? ‘l i
Li L L_'_ — 1 L1 s e

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (as amended)

Cathedral Quarry Tree Preservation Order No.1 2022

w1

Mixed trees consisling mainly of Betula Pendula (Silver Birch),
Prunus Avium (Sweet Cherry), Quercus Robur (English Oak),
Fraxinus Excelsior (European Ash) and Acer Campestre (Field Maple)

CITY OF
w2 @ Lincoln
Mixed trees consisling mainly of Betula Pendula (Silver Birch), SCUTIETE
Prunus Avium (Sweet Chermry), Quercus Robur (English Oak), g::l-ll-:;l::m Fon
Alnus Glutinosa (Black Alder) and Acer Campestre (Field Maple) Lincoln,

LM1 10D

Website: www lincoln.gov.uk

Scale: 1:1250 at Ad

Version 2:  10-Now-2022

96



Appendix 2 — Proposed revised boundary.

97




This page is intentionally blank.



Cathedral Quarry TPO — Representations and Photographs.

LINDUM Group Lid
Limdum Business Park
Station Aoad, Morth Hykeham, Lncoln LNB 305

Tel 01522 500300
Weln wownwy lindumgroup.com

Our Ref: RISTPO

1 December 2022

Kelly Bray,

Planning Services,

Department of Communities and Environment,
City of Lincoln Council,

City Hall,

Beaumont Fee,

Lincoln,

LN1 1DD

Dear Kelly,

Cathedral Quarry Tree Preservation Oder No.1 2022

| write to you on behalf of the Lindum Group in relation to the above Tree Preservation Order (TPO) which
took effect on a provisional basis on the 2nd November 2022, The Lindum Group own 439 Riseholme Road
and received a letter notifying us of the order on the 14th of November. Please accept this letter as our
formal objection to the proposed order in line with regulation & of the Town and County Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012,

‘We have three main grounds for objections to the proposed crder, with those three grounds being the
prematurity of the order while a planning application is being considered, the classification of the trees within
the arder as woodland and finally the justification for the order in terms of visual amenity. Each of these
grounds are be considered in more detail below.

Al the time of writing an outline planning application has been submitted to Lincolnshire County Council and
Is under consideration. The Outline application is a joint application by the Lindum Group and Lincoln
Cathedral and is for the residential development of the site (planning reference PL/0096/22). The application
was validated in August of this year and had therefore been running for over 2 months at the date the TPO
was made. Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
states that an exception to an implemented TPO is when works are required to implement a planning
permission. Given that a planning application on the site is well progressed, we guestion the timing of the
TPO and suggest that it is premature in advance of a planning decision. The removal and retention of trees
on site will be considered as part of the development management process with any decision considering
and potentially restricting tree removal on site.

For clarity, the planning application includes a combined approach of both retention and removal of trees
within the site, together with additional tree planting. The overall principle of the proposals is that the bunds
within the site on which some of the trees proposed for inclusion within the TPO will be removed and the
bund material used for the infill of the guarry ahead of residential development. Therefore, the TPO is in

Offices also in: Peteriocrough and York Regisbered in England Compary No: 1236338

99



direct conflict with our planning application proposals. It is worth noting however that a good proportion of
trees proposed within the TPO areas are included for retention in the planning application with those trees
being located on the site’s periphery, on the boundary side of the bunds.

In addition to the submitted planning application, the site is also included as a residential allocation in the
emerging Revised Central Lincolnshire Local Plan which is well progressed and is currently at the examination
stage. The hearing session for allocations in the Lincoln Area was held last week and included discussion of
the Quarry site. The conclusion reached at the examination was that the specific requirement for the
retention of the bunds on site did not need to be included in the allocation policy and a modification to the
plan is required to remove this reguirement. It translates that if the requirement to retain the bunds is
remaoved from the emerging policy then the trees on top of the bunds are not protected within said policy.
This change to the allocation policy should be ratified ahead of the formal adoption of the Local Plan and
furthers our objection in terms of the TPO being premature given the planning context of the site.

Our second point of objection is based on the classification of the trees included in the TPO as areas of
woodland. No definition of what constitutes a woodland is included in the TPO and | can find no definition in
the supporting legislation for TPO's. The Forestry Commission definition for a forest includes for a minimum
area of 0.5 hectares under stands of trees with, or with the potential to achieve, tree crown cover of more
than 20% of the ground. The two areas identified as woodland in the TPO are not 0.5 hectares and therefore
do not conform to this definition. | enclose a drone photograph of the site with this letter that shows the
trees on site, the photo clearly shows that the classification of woodland is unjustified. At best the trees on
site should be considered as a group and therefore further information should be included in the TPO. This
is confirmed in Regulation 3 of the 2012 regulations which states that “where the order relates to a group of
trees, shall specify the number of trees of each species in the group”. This is not the case in the TPO.

The final part of our objection is based on the justification for the TPO, with the City Council placing the order
because “The trees contribute to the visual amenity of the area”. We strongly dispute this justification, with
our view that the trees in question do not contribute to the visual amenity of the area. At best the trees form
a very localised function in terms of visual amenity and can only be seen from directly neighbouring
properties. Access to the site is not readily available to the public and therefore views of the trees are not
available from publicly accessible areas. Can clarification please be given on how the trees have been
accessed in terms of the TPO process as access has not been granted by the landowner.

Atree report has been included as part of the planning application referenced earlier and a copy can be made
available as part of the TPO process if required. The Tree Report found no category A trees [High quality
trees) on site with a large number of the trees on site identified as either C class trees (low quality trees) or
U class trees (trees of negligible significance). The lack of a significant number of high-quality trees within the
site furthers our case in terms of the TPO being placed on the site as being unjustified. A very significant
number of trees on site are self-set trees that have grown on top of the bunds detailed above. The tree report
gives no support or justification to the proposed TPO.

On the basis of the above, we strongly object to the TPO proposed for the Cathedral Quarry site and it is our
view that the order should not confirmed and should not take effect formally. Not only is the TPO premature
in planning terms with a planning application currently running, but the classification of the trees as
woodland in the TPO and the justification for TPO being placed is in our view incorrect and unwarranted.

As is demonstrated in our planning application and referenced above, a good number of trees an site can be
retained as part of our proposals. These trees are located on the boundary side of the bunds and therefore
tend to be of a higher guality and significance as they have been in situ for a much greater period of time and
were planted as specimen trees. These trees are located closest to neighbouring residents and will provide a

100



good level of protection of the amenity of neighbouring residents should housing development come forward
on the site as planned. Whilst we do not believe any TPO is necessary on site, we would be willing to accept
a compromise that included a reduced TPO on site, including the trees located to the boundary side of the
bunds. We have produced a plan that shows the trees in question and suggest that this is a more reasonable
and appropriate level of trees to be protected.

We would be more than willing to meet with officer on site to discuss further and provide the opportunity
for officers to view the trees from within the site boundary. Please let me know if such a meeting is
considered worthwhile by the City Council.

Yours Sincerely

Robert Jays
Land and Planning Manager

101




102



LLLLLLLLLLLLL

103




i
i

LINCOLN
CATHEDRAL

2 December 2022

Kelly Bray

Planning Services,

Department of Communities and Environment,
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

LN1 10D

Dear Kelly
Cathedral Quarry Tree Preservation Order No.1 2022

| write to you on behalf of Lincoln Cathedral, the owners of the quarry, in relation to the above Tree
Preservation Order (TPO) which took effect on a provisional basis on the 2 November 2022, Please accept
this letter as our formal objection to the proposed order in line with regulation & of the Town and County
Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012.

We have three main grounds for objections to the proposed order, with those three grounds being the
prematurity of the order while a planning application is being considered, the classification of the trees within
the order as woodland and finally the justification for the order in terms of visual amenity. Each of these
grounds are considered in more detail below.

At the time of writing an outline planning application has been submitted to Lincolnshire County Council and
is under consideration. The outline application is a joint application by the Lindum Group and Lincoln
Cathedral and is for the residential development of the site (planning reference PL/0096/22). The application
was validated in August of this year and had therefore been running for over two months at the date the TPO
was made. Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012
states that an exception to an implemented TPO is when works are required to implement a planning
permissicn. Given that a planning application on the site is well progressed, we guestion the timing of the
TPO and suggest that it is premature in advance of a planning decision. The removal and retention of trees
on site will be considered as part of the development management process with any decision considering
and potentially restricting tree remaoval on site.

Faor clarity, the planning application includes a combined approach of both retention and removal of trees
within the site together with additicnal tree planting. The overall principle of the proposals is that the bunds
within the site on which some of the trees proposed for inclusion within the TPO will be removed and the
bund material used for the infill of the quarry ahead of residential development. Therefore, the TPO is in
direct conflict with our planning application proposals. It is worth noting however that a good proportion of
trees proposed within the TPO areas are included for retention in the planning application with those trees
being located on the site’s periphery, on the boundary side of the bunds.

Lincoln Cathedral
Registered Address: The Chapter Office, 4 Priorygate, Lincoln, LN2 1PL

Lincoin Caihedal comprises: The Corporaie Body of Lincoin Cathedal (Exampt Charity, HMRC Charty Reference Mumber X7802); Lincoin Cathedral Music Fund (Charity Mumber
#033085]; Lincoin Cathedral Leaming, Arts, Culture and Events CI0 (Chartty Mumber 1175587 Lincoin Minser Shops Lid. (Companty Regisiralion Mumber 01015279];
Lincoin Cahedral Quay Lid. (Company Regisiaiion Mumber [4634975).

104



In addition to the submitted planning application, the site is also incuded as a residential allocation in the
emerging Revised Central Lincolnshire Local Plan which is well progressed and is currently at the examination
stage. The hearing session for allocations in the Lincoln Area was held recently and included discussion of the
CQuarry site. The conclusion reached at the examination was that the specific requirement for the retention
of the bunds on site did not need to be included in the allocation policy and a modification to the plan is
required to remove this requirement. It translates that if the requirement to retain the bunds i1s removed
from the emerging poelicy then the trees on top of the bunds are not protected within said policy. This change
to the allocation policy should be ratified ahead of the formal adoption of the Local Plan and furthers our
objection in terms of the TPO being premature given the planning context of the site.

Cur second point of objection is based on the classification of the trees included in the TPO as areas of
woodland. No definition of what constitutes a woodland is included in the TPO and | can find no definition in
the supporting legislation for TPOs. The Forestry Commission definition for a forest includes for a minimum
area of 0.5 hectares under stands of trees with, or with the potential to achieve, tree crown cover of more
than 20%: of the ground. The two areas identified as woodland in the TPO are not 0.5 hectares and therefore
do not conform to this definition. | enclose a drone photograph of the site with this letter that shows the
trees on site, the photo clearly shows that the classification of woodland is unjustified. At best the trees on
site should be considered as a group and therefore further information should be included in the TPO. This
is confirmed in Regulation 3 of the 2012 regulations which states that “where the order relates to a group of
trees, shall specify the number of trees of each species in the group”. This is not the case in the TPO.

The final part of our objection is based on the justification for the TPO, with the City Council placing the order
because “The trees contribute to the visual amenity of the area”. We strongly dispute this justification, with
our view that the trees in question do not contribute to the visual amenity of the area. At best the trees form
a wery localised function in terms of visual amenity and can only be seen from directly neighbouring
properties. Access to the site is not readily available to the public and therefore views of the trees are not
available from publicly accessible areas. Can clarification please be given on how the trees have been
accessed in terms of the TPO process as access has not been granted by the landowner.

Atree report has been included as part of the planning application referenced earlier and a copy can be made
available as part of the TPO process if required. The Tree Report found no category A trees (High quality
trees) on site with a large number of the trees on site identified as either C class trees (low quality trees) or
U class trees (trees of negligible significance). The lack of a significant number of high-guality trees within the
site furthers our case in terms of the TPO being placed on the site as being unjustified. A very significanmt
number of trees on site are self-set trees that have grown on top of the bunds detailed above. The tree report
gives no support or justification to the proposed TPO.

Cn the basis of the abowve, we strongly object to the TPO proposed for the Cathedral Quarry site and it is our
view that the order should not confirmed and should not take effect formally. Not only is the TPO premature
in planning terms with a planning application currently running, but the dassification of the trees as
woodland in the TPO and the justification for TPO being placed is in our view incorrect and unwarranted.

As is demonstrated in our planning application and referenced above, 8 good number of trees on site can be
retained as part of our proposals. These trees are located on the boundary side of the bunds and therefore
tend to be of a higher quality and significance as they have been in situ for a much greater period of time and
were planted as specimen trees. These trees are located dosest to neighbouring residents and will provide a
good level of protection of the amenity of neighbouring residents should housing development come forward
on the site as planned. Whilst we do not believe any TPO is necessary on site, we would be willing to accept
a compromise that included a reduced TPO on site, including the trees located to the boundary side of the

105



bunds. We have produced a plan that shows the trees in question and suggest that this is a more reasonable
and appropriate level of trees to be protected

We would be more than willing to meet with officer on site to discuss further and provide the opportunity
for officers to view the trees from within the site boundary. Please let me know if such a3 meeting is

considered worthwhile by the City Council

Yours sincerely

Will Harrison Ba[Hons) MA MSC MCIPR FRSA
Chapter Clerk

106



Representation from Susan Nock

Ref; Tree Preservation Order 1.2022

Response to consultation with reference to the Objections raised by
Lincoln Cathedral and Lindum Construction

Written by Susan Nock

Contents

Introduction

Summary

Discussion

Conclusions

Appendix 1 TPO Application

Appendix 2A Position of trees on the bund

Appendix 2B Images showing tree roots growing up a bank.

Appendix 3 Tree Schedule taken from the Tree Survey of the Cathedral Quarry Site

Introduction.

1 was surprised and disappointed to hear that the Cathedral and Lindum Construction had objected
to the Tree Preservation Order which the City of Lincoln Council had seen fit to award following my
application.

However, | was shocked and dismayed to see how information had been misquoted and
misrepresented in their attempt to have this application overthrown.

My response follows, and for clarity | have used the same grounds as were contained in their
Objection.

Summary.
This Objection should be discounted because it is based on incorrect information and

misrepresentation.
The Objection makes the following incorrect assertions;

The timing of the application is premature.

The timing of the application was determined by the lack of regard given to the existing planning
permissions by the Cathedral and Lindum Construction.

The Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulation 2012
has been deliberately misquoted to mislead the council regarding the TPQO's legality.

The TPO is not necessary

The Objection denies the fact that the removal of the bund as proposed in the outline planning
application will destroy the roots of the trees on the bund resulting in their death.

Therefore, the TPO is necessary to save the woodland from their planned development.

The trees do not constitute a woodland.

The Tree Report submitted with the outline planning application identified three areas contained in
the proposed TPO as woodland however the Objection refutes this.

The information contained in the Tree Report is misrepresented and distorted in the Objection, and
does not reflect the true quality of the trees as stated in the report.

This is another attempt to mislead the council.

The justification of the order is incorrect
The Objection regarding the lack of visual amenity fails to mention that the woodland on the bund
will shortly become the boundary to an intense residential development of approximately 75 houses

Page | 1

107



within a highly developed area of the city. It is a valued amenity as illustrated by the strong local
support given to petitions and the number of objections to its remaowval.

Discussion

The objection to the Tree Preservation Order by the Lincoln Cathedral and Lindum Construction
followed their application for outline planning permission which included the demolition of the bund
and thereby the destruction of the associated woodland.

Their Objection is based on the following assertions,;
+ The timing of the application is premature.
+ The TPO is not necessary
# The trees do not constitute a woodland.
# The justification of the order is incorrect

I will deal with each one and reference the relevant paragraphs where necessary for clarity.
The timing of the application is premature.

The protection of the bund and the associated trees has been the subject of planning permissions
since before 1995, Its precise construction is detailed in planning documents as is the planting of
trees on the outside of the bund at approximately 2.5 meters apart.

Protection has continued through a restoration scheme for the quarry and latterly in the Local Plan
for Lincoln.

The Cathedral and Lindum construction chose to disregard all of this protection and submitted an
outline planning application in August 2022 which included the demolishing of the bund. This
resulted in 48 Objections 41 of which specifically objected to the removal of the trees, destruction of
habitat, and / or the removal of the bund, and yet the Cathedral and Lindum construction remain
determined to destroy the bund and the associated trees.

It was this continuing blatant disregard for the planning process that prompted my application for
the Tree Preservation Order which is contained in Appendix 1

In their Objection Lindum Construction and the Cathedral state that;

“Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulation 2012
states that an exemption to an implemented TPO is when works are required to implement a
planning permission.”

This is a deliberate misquotation of the regulation which actually states;

“Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulation 2012
states that an exemption to an implemented TPO is when works are required to implement a
planning permission {other than an outline planning permission....J"

The Cathedral and Lindum Construction have tried to pervert the planning process, by deliberately
misquoting the Planning Regulations which clearly state that regulation 14 does not apply in the
instance of an outline planning application.

For this reason alone this Objection should be discounted as a false representation of the truth.
Also they describe their planning application as “well progressed™ when in fact the application is for
outline permission only and is only at the consultation stage.

For all the reasons given above this TPO cannot be considered as premature.

The TPO is not necessary.

In paragraph 4 of the Objection they state that they intend to remove the bund but that this will not
effect the trees on the boundary side of the bund. As stated earlier these trees are on the bund, and
therefore their Root Protection Area includes the bund. See images Appendix 2 A

In an Arboriculture Advisory and Information Service report 130/95/ARB reporting research
undertaken for the Department of the Environment it states ; "Tree roots may extend radially a

Page | 2

108



distance at least equivalent to the height of the tree and are located primarily in the upper 80 cm of
soil.”

Tree roots follow the contours of the surrounding land and will therefore travel up and down a bank
see images Appendix 2 B.

Demolishing the bund will kill the trees as it will destroy their root systems.

Their argument also discounts the trees and saplings which have grown on the bund since 1995
some of which are now mature specimens.

The TPO is necessary to protect the trees from the demaolition of the bund.

The classification of the trees as constituting a woodland.

The Objection states that the TPO should rather be for a group than a woodland.

Interestingly the Tree Report submitted with the outline planning application identified three areas
contained in the proposed TPO as woodland but this is refuted in the Objection.

The difference between a Tree Preservation Order for a group of trees and a woodland s that one
covers just the specified trees and the other covers the area as a whole including saplings and self
seeded trees. This is because the purpose of a Woodland Order is to safeguard the woodland as a
whole, which depends on regeneration or new planting.

Both orders, whether it be for a group of trees or a woodland are not dependent on the size or
number of trees included. It is about the type of protection afforded by the order.

(Gov.ukfguidance/tree preservation orders..)

“The woodland category’s purpose is to safeguard a woodland as a whole. So it follows that,
while some trees may lack individual merit, all trees within a woodland that merits protection are
protected and made subject to the same provisions and exemptions.

In addition, trees and saplings which grow naturally or are planted within the woodland area after
the Order is made are also protected by the Order.

In paragraph 8 it is stated that the Tree Report submitted with the outline planning application
identified "a large number of trees as identified as C class trees {low quality trees) or U dass trees
(trees of negligible significance).”

This is incorrect; of the 50 trees identified in the report only 6 were categorized as U, whereas 27
were categorised as B (trees of moderate quality) and the remaining 17 were categorized as C.
Of the 3 woodland areas identified in the report one was categorised as B and the others as C.
Once again the facts have been misrepresented in order to misdirect the process and mislead the
council.

See Appendix 3 for the full tree schedule.

The justification of the order
I cannot comment on the procedures followed by the council in awarding this order however | have
received assurances about their robustness.

My application for the TPO was based an the Government Criteria and the following headings taken
from a briefing by Friends of the Earth which | found very useful;

Assessing amenity value is not an exact science and is done by considering the following criteria:
= The extent to which trees/woodlands are visible from a public place.

The Objection states that views of the trees are not available from publicly accessible areas.
However the quarry is about to become an intense housing development surrounded on all sides by

residential properties and estates. The woodland will be visible to all the new residents as well as the
existing community which has watched it grow and thrive and has petitioned for its preservation.

Page | 3

109



* Their individual, collective and wider impact, including future amenity potential, rarity, cultural
or historic value, relation with the landscape, and their contribution to the character of a
conservation area. This could include, for example, a social and personal sense of wellbeing or
identity.

The variety of trees and shrubs are largely British natives and include Field Maple, Ash, Hazel,
Hawthorne, Guelder Rose, Yew, Wild Cherry, Silver Birch, Dogwood, and Dog Rose. Over the years
they have grown to mature specimens and an important amenity providing enormous amounts of
what is now referred to as Vitamin G because of the benefits known to be associated with the
presence of trees on our wellbeing.

Whether it is the frost on the boughs in winter, the lime green of fresh growth in the spring, the
smell of the hawthorn blossom, the rustle of a summer breeze through the branches, or the glorious
autumn colours this woodland enhances the lives of the local population.

The woodland on the bund provides an ark for wildlife in a sea of development and a reminder to
anyone experiencing its diversity the joy of nature being allowed to "do its thing".

* Relevance for nature conservation and in response to climate change.

We are told that in order to combat climate change we must plant more trees and the council has
acknowledged that there is a climate emergency. How many saplings would we need to plant in
order to replace the contribution made by just one of these 25 year old trees to climate change, and
yet this is the exchange we are being offered by planners.

For full details of my request for the TPO please see Appendix 1

Conclusion.

My conclusion is that this Objection contains such inaccuracies, and misrepresentations that it
should be considered as inadmissible.

Planning decisions since 1995 have repeatedly protected the bund and its associated woodland.
This Tree Preservation Order ensures that the protection will continue for the benefit of the local
population, the wildlife, and the environment.

The Bund in Springtime

Page | 4

110



The woodland on the bund provides an ark for wildlife in a sea of development and will enhance the
residential estate on the quarry site.

Page | 5

111



Appendix 2A

Images showing position of trees on the bund.

112



Appendix 28

Images showing how roots grow up and along the contours of a bank.
Photos taken at Hubbard’s Hills Louth.

113



17 Thonock Close
LINCOLN LN1 3SW
> TP R N b}

Kelly Bray

Planning Services

Dept. of Communities and Environment

City Hall

LINCOLN LN1 1DD

Dear Ms. Bray
Re : Notice of Making of a Tree Preservation Order

| write in response to your recent letter regarding the above Order on the site of the
Cathedral Quarry, Risehoime Road, Lincoln.

| am happy to hear of this provisional Preservation Order, however, as | live at the
southern end of this proposed development | am at a loss to understand why the
properties adjacent to mine have been denied this status when we will be the most

impacted by the proposed buildings.

The trees in question were planted in 2006 and are therefore, mature Hawthorn,
Rowan etc as are the ones already under the proposed order.

Can you please explain why at the moment they have been excluded? The wildiife
enjoyed here and within the trees is vital in 2022 when green spaces are at a
premium and it would appear, too readily being destroyed.

| urge you to include this area described in your proposed Preservation Order and
await your comments.

(ANN HIPKIN, Mrs)

114



e/ E20A e U HIA
- |
| " \' ‘f "/‘-
{(ete ax\ovy o A
- - - ol
ynwacs/ Y { enoinMm<

A&

<

Ve

>

VA

\ oSN \,’-‘L as

we

O\ X \ i{;'\/Q\C

. CoNn sted

I ;=
t 0SS ‘L’X,‘v‘\(“L. Ny

2. LISS NG o e
— N 2 = N> &
(T, bl
L2 G
| ) 1S -\ o
V& Ve ( 4\.~¢\ e L€ e (’v'.J;l’\l T™WnL
1 |
fo ot e 1T (&L A e covTwWwe A\ O
' O (14
| | 4 Ui " "’
INEeocN naUl ‘;"h:x, ™ ]"( misSian
- f
r \
o NOUS w\Q.
|
i ) - 1+ A | - { 5
Th« Y clown aboud the w\adl »(C
|
\s  hedge "nt'.(13 fapbis awnc bals
/
foa.d C/""‘\'\"i oukx et Seholme

(C

Ouah. esrpeda \(,_l‘[.‘, a4 ‘_(-\.“,,(/

(\(
) K '*r':\*rv(_",
\ \ | o
4 IT SeemS Ne v"{\’Hh’/ 2N '\C\\ M LA A o Dblte S
Qe the o Ay,

'f ne \\

WELE-C

{

to

kec.f Afecn Space

o\ \0'\,J‘\ (O,

( A

._L, \t 2N S

\O \, "\[ US vi \c(

115



This page is intentionally blank.



	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 22 March 2023
	4a Corner Of Sincil Street & Waterside South, Lincoln
	Hotel Waterside South committee plans
	Hotel Waterside photos1
	Hotel Waterside South consultation responses 2022

	4b Adjacent To Post Office, Parklands Food Store, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln
	2023.0182.PAT - Boultham Park Road Mast
	2023.0182.PAT - Boultham Park Road Mast consultation responses

	5 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No 174
	TPO representations and photos Cathedral Quarry


